NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of the members of M/s MTR FOODS
PRIVATE LIMITED will be held at the registered office of the Company at No.1, 2™ Floor,
100 Feet Inner Ring road, Ejipura Ashwini Layout, Viveknagar, Bangalore - 560 047 on
Monday, 30" Day of September 2022, at 5.30 PM to transact the following ordinary

business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Directors Report, Auditors Report and the Audited
Balance Sheet as at 31t March, 2022.

Date: 28.09.2022
Place: Bangalore
For MTR Foods Private Limited
Sd/-
Aneesh Kongot
(Company Secretary)
PAN : AVEPK7186]
NOTES:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and
vote instead of himself /herself and the proxy so appointed shall be a member of
the Company. Proxies in order to be effective must be lodged with the company
not less than 48 hrs before the meeting.

2. Notice of AGM has been issued pursuant to the provisions of Section 101 of the Companies Act,
2013 and that the consent for “Shorter Notice” has already been received by the Company from

the shareholders holding not less than 95% of the paid up capital of the Company.
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NOTES:

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and
vote instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the company. The proxy form duly
completed, stamped and signed should, however, be deposited at the registered office of the
company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting

The aforesaid meeting being held at short notice; we request you to accord your written consent to
convening the meeting at a shorter notice in the form attached as Annexure | to this notice.
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Consent by Shareholder for shorter notice

[Pursuant to Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013]

To

The Board of Directors

MTR Foods Private Limited
No.1, 2nd and 3rd Floor

100 Feet Inner Ring Road
Ejipura, Ashwini Layout

Vivek Nagar Bangalore - 560047
Karnataka, India

Dear Sirs,
Sub: Consent for holding Annual General Meeting of MTR Foods Private Limited at a shorter notice

We, [.] , being the shareholder of MTR Foods Private Limited holding equity shares of

INR 10 in the Company in our name hereby give our consent pursuant to section 101(1) of the

Companies Act, 2013, to hold the Annual General Meeting on 30" September 2022 at shorter notice.

For [.]

Director/Authorised Signatory

Date:

Place

Route Map
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BOARD'S REPORT
Dear Members,

We are pleased to present 26 Annual Report on business and operations together with the Audited Financial
Statements and the Auditor's Report of your Company for the Year ended March 2022,

FINANCIAL RESULTS (Standalone and Consolidated)

The Financial highlights of the Company for the financial year 2022 are as follow:

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Standalone Consolidated

Particulars 31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar- 2021 | 31-Mar- 2022 | 31-Mar- 2021
Operating Income 97 489 95,018 1.84,108 96,691
Other Income 636 870 1546 1063
Total Income 98,125 95,888 1,85,654 97,754
Total Expenditure 84234 79,639 1,66,776 81,163
Profit / (Loss) before Exceptional and 13890 16,049 18,879 16,591
Extraordinary items and Tax
Less: Exceptional ltems - - -
Less :Share of Loss from Associates - - 62 130
Less: Current Tax & tax of earlier years 3766 4,309 5413 4,361
Deferred Tax (173) (180} (444) (234)
Profit Or Loss after Tax 10,297 11,920 13,910 12,334
Finance Cost on Forward Contract Liability (2,128) (2,128)
Net Profit after Tax 8,169 11,920 11,719 12,334
Other Comprehensive Income 0 (20 (16) {21)
Balance as per Last Balance Sheet 39,130 27,230 38,581 26,268
Less: Amount Utilised for Buy back of 0 0 0 0
Shares and tax Theron 4
Transfer to Reserves 0 0 0 0
Balance Transferred to Balance Sheet 47,299 39,130 50,284 38,581
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Fl PERFORMA

REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS:

Generol Economy and Maorkets:

The last few years have shown that we live in a volatile world and it takes just a few days to transform a
relatively stable global environment to that of one filled with uncertainty and com plexity. The devastating
pandemic that we witnessed brought into sharp focus not just narmal challenges such as social disparities
and climate in general but also abnormal challenges like the hunt for viable vaccines and administering
them to the vast global populations in a timely and effective manner. We also saw unprecedented
volatility and unpredictability in the business environment, growing geopolitical tensions between
countries as well as societal imbalances especially in the developing and underdeveloped regions in Asia
and Africa. Amidst all this tumult, there was a fair degree of unanimity amaongst various global
communities that the way forward is for businesses and society to build a sustainable, equitable and
climate friendly future.

India remains one of the fastest growing FMCG markets with a strong historical record and potentially can
continue to sustain a strong growth path many years into the future on the back of its strong population
base as well as favourable demographic dividend. However, the high inflation rates that we have seen in
India (largely fuelled by the overall uncertainty, unpredictability of supply chains and commodity markets)
has led to the high growth rates of the past to somewhat moderate. However, notwithstanding the slow-
down in FMCG market (mainly volume growth), the penetration of FMCG products and categories both in
urban and rural India boosts the overall growth outlook. More and more people are entering the robust
middle class, a continuously growing working population, rapid urbanisation, accelerated technology
adoption all point to a high growth trajectory for FMCG for several years into the future. The Indian
consumer is evolving rapidly and we have also seen that the pandemic and its aftermath has accelerated
several consumer buying and behavioural trends that will have far-reaching impact on how and what the
consumer will buy in the future. We see that the Indian consumer will have an increased affinity towards
products which are more convenient to consume, products that offer a halistic health and wel| being and
a clear and definite shift towards buying on electronic platforms using digital technology and payment
platforms. The younger population — Millennials and Gen-Z - is also gravitating towards a choice for
superior brands, products that are sustainable from a climate and environment paint of view as well as
prefer to buy from those businesses that are socially responsible and sensitive towards society and its

people.
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Your Company aperates in the FMCG enviranment and the year 2021-22 was yet another challenging year
for all of us. The pandemic’s second wave was severe in terms of impact and the swiftness with which it
affected the community. Our market too was impacted severely by this and it was anly due to the swift
vaccine roll-out and executive action in terms of administering the vaccine to vast multitudes of
population that this impact was somewhat contained. Else it would have had a debilitating impact on the
humanitarian and economic profile of India for a longer period that what we saw finally. In this uncertain
operating business environment, your Company’s focus remained on the health and safety of our
employees, distribution partners and their employees, stakeholders etc to ensure uninterrupted supply
of our products into the markets, meeting the changing needs of our consumers, and at the same time
genuinely caring for the larger communities, safeguarding the environment and generally ensuring
business continuity in a robust and controlled way.

Against this challenging backdrop, our strang financial results for the financial year 2021-22 demonstrate
strategic clarity, strength of our brands, our execution ability and market agility. Your Company & its Board
wish to place on record their sincere appreciation to the Company's employees, business partners,
distributors, vendors, customers & other stakeholders for their continued exemplary work to deliver
excellent results in a difficult year, yet again.

Despite the overall business uncertainty and volatility and sustained supply chain disruptions in markets
and operations during 2021-22 which impacted all sectors of the economy, the Net sales of your com pany,
during the year, grew by ~3% largely due to the high base growth effects of the year 2020-21. While
domestic market maintained its strong margin profiel, exports market continued to be impacted by non-
availability of shipping containers and high freight costs resuling from high Turn around times at various
ports across the world. Sales growth was sustained through both volume (in some categories) and price
growths (in almost all categories) as the entire focus of the business teams was to ensure continuous
supply of stocks into markets. Due to supply chain disruptions and also restricted availability commuodity
prices went up significantly which was countered by swift pricing actions initiated very early in the year
itself. Gross Margin was slightly better compared to earlier years mainly due to a favourable sales mix
(sales of high margin categories such as Masalas) and a robust overhead cost control process put in place
to cut all non-essential costs across the business value chain.

Relative to last year, the year 2021-22 saw intense competition in most categories and markets that your
Company participates in. Competition in home markets continued to be strong which was countered by
sharply targeted market specific consumer promotions and pricing actians — in all channels inciuding
digital E-commerce channels. While Advertising & Sales promotion spends were severaly curtalled to
protect profits in the initial part of the financial year, it was fully restored once competitive intensity
resumed. Advertising and sales promotion costs recorded in the P&L increased by Rs 297 Lakhs during the
year from Rs 7424 Lakhs in 2020-21 to Rs 7721 Lakhs in 2021-22.

The supply chains that were deeply impacted due to Covid disruptions impacted overall cost structure of
most businesses. In addition the war in Ukraine towards the end of the financial year brought in more

Begul 0w Fawtgy
MTR Foods Private Limited MTR Foods Private Limited
Na. &, 3nd K 3rd Floor Mo, Bo, Bommasandra ind. Area

100 et inrer Ring Road, Efipua Hebbagodi, Anckal Taluk
Astwini Layaut, Viveknagar 50, Bengalur - L0 099
Bengalury - 560 og7. INDIA INGLA

BAC Certifled Comprny

Cik: VST IRKA 1598FTOOZ 1007 7. =91 Bo 4081 3wo ! oF T +91 Bo 4252 Boon

Oruia OF aup ©ampany Winn www, mirfoods, com F- agy Bo 37A3 sAa8



uncertainty and-volatility. Your Company had to take sharp price corrections to cover cost increases to
protect margins and profits. As stated earlier, based on the price increases rolled out, the rising
commodity and other costs were not only offset but such swift pricing actions also helped to deliver a
handsome margin during the year. However the margin this year was lower by 2% compared to the
previous year as 2020-21 saw an unprecedented 50% growth in Sweet Mixes which is a high margin
captegory while growth in this category could not be sustained in 2021-22/

Although operational costs went up significantly due to Covid 2 wave induced actions viz: social
distancing norms, sanitisation measures, increasing transport infrastructure for employees etc, aggressive
cost control measures were driven across the business value chain to more than offset these cost
increases. Consequently, overheads growth has been broadly under control during the year despite an
inflationary environment in the broader economy. However due to the broad based opening up of
markets and market normalisations post vaccine roll-outs, travel and other administrative costs
normalised which pushed up overheads to the pre-Covid level seen in earlier years.

As a result of all the aforesaid actions in Pricing, Cost control areas, offset by higher overheads as stated
above EBIDTAis lower by Rs2299 lakhs and as a % to sales was lower at 18% (Rs 17281 Lakhs) compared
to 21% (Rs 19580 Lakhs) last year, due to strong performance of last year.

Interest cost was lower than last year as your Company had surplus liquid resources with strong
profitability and continued its negative working capital trend througout the year despite the need to
increase its finished good inventory cover to ensure business continuity and uninterrupted supplies to
markets and consumers. Surplus cash continues to be invested in highly rated short-term liquid
investments to ensure high safety as per Group policy. However this year’s Finance Cost is higher by Rs
2128 Lakhs which is not a cash expenditure but has arisen due to the full 100% disclosure of Eastern
investments on MTR's standalone Balance Sheet as on 31" March 2021 and consequently the finance
charge for the year 2021-22 has been accounted as such this year,

With EBIDTA registering a decline of 3% to Sales — compared to last year -, profit before taxes for the year
at Rs 11762 Lakhs was Rs 4287 Lakhs lower than last year due to the above mentioned Finance charge,
higher normalised overhead costs and lower margins due to lower Sweet Mix sales. During the year, the
reduced Corporate tax rate of 25.2% has been considered in line with last year.

Strategic / Structural Initigtives :

On 16" and 17" March 2021, Your Company (the Board and shareholders) executed documentation to
acquire a control equity stake of 67.82% in Eastern Condiments Private Limited (Eastern). This acquisition
was completed with closing date 31" March 2021. Post closing the share purchase, the intent is to file a
merger application before the concerned authorities (National Company Law Tribunal) seeking merger of
Eastern into your Company. Upon merger, against the residual stake of 32.18% held by the promoters,
they will be issued 9.99% shares in MTR. This partnership has the potential of providing a solid growth
platform to expand the Spices and Masalas segment into a high growth segment in the near future for
your Company in India.
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During the financial year 2021-22, appropriate actions were taken to shift the Re gistered Office of Eastern
to Bengaluru and an Application for merger of Eastern into MTR was also filed at the Bengaluru bench of
the National Company Law Tribunal. Hearings have commenced after the financial year end and hopefully
we will complete the merger process in the next few months.

Information Technology :

IT systems for today’s business must invariably be characterized by 100% Ontime Availability, a Capability
that has a symbiotic relationship with employees and a Resilience that adapts and responds to the
changing needs of the business and its teams. The pandemic has led to several changes in the ways we
work in the frontlines, back-ends as well as in administrative offices. It has also led to consumers and
customers increasing their digital interfaces with partners which has in turn led to an explosive trend in
increased online transactions. While several automated systems and processes were rolled out during
2021-22, sharp focus was provided to Sales and Manufacturing related applications.

Industrial Relations :

Your Company had harmaonious relations with employees at all levels, functional and locations during the
year. The Long Term Wage Settlement with the factory workmen was signed in June 2019 but effective
from April 2018. This agreement ended in March 2021, and negotlations were completed during the
current financial year and the Long Term Wage Agreement signed for a period of 3 years.

Despite the all pervading effect of Covid, your Directors look forward to the future with a strong sense of
optimism of improved business operations through the above initiatives in the ensuing years, There has
been no change in the nature of business of company.

During the year, Your Company recorded a total income of Rs 97489Lakhs as against Rs 95018 Lakhs in
the previous year registering an increase of Rs 2871 Lakhs. The Net profit of the Company for Financial
Year 2021-22 was Rs 8169 Lakhs — lower by Rs 3751 Lakhs — against Net profit of Rs 11,920 Lakhs achieved
last year.

EN E RE

With & view to conserve resources for Company's operations and debt servicing, your Directors do not
recommend payment of dividend for the year ended 2022. The profit earmed during the year has been
transferred to General Reserve of the Company.

CAPITAL ST RE

At present, the Authorized share capital of the Company is Rs 50,00,00,000/- (Fifty Crores) divided into
5,00,00,000/- (Five Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/ - each.
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In the beginning of the financial year ending 31 March 2021, the issued and paid up Share Capital of the
Company was Rs. 9,80,92,690 /- (Nine Crore Eighty Lakhs Ninety-Two Thousand and Six Ninety) comprising
0f 88,089,269 (Ninety eight lakhs Nine Thousand two hundred and Sixty Nine) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each.
During the year (in March 2021) fresh equity shares were issued on Rights basis to its shareholders to fund
the acquisition of Eastern Condiments Pvt Ltd. Under this Rights issue, 25,21,000 Equity shares were issued
to Orkla Asia Pacific Pvt Ltd at a price of Rs 4418 per share

IDIARY / IATES

During the year under review, the Company has two subsidiary companies viz: Eastern Condiments Private
Limited, Rasoi Magic Foods (India) Private Limited and one associate company viz M/s Potful India Private
Limited.

The consolidated financials of your Company together with the said subsidiary is also appended to this
Report.

CTORS
Duning the year under review, no changes were made to the Constitution of the Board.

EETINGS BOARD

Information in respect of the composition of Board, qualification of Board members, field of specialization,
status of Directorships, meetings held during the financial year 2020-22 and their attendance at each meeting
of the Board are as under:

Composition of Board

During the year, the composition of the Board of Directors of your Company has been in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board of Directors of the Company as on 31% March 2022
consisted of 7 Directors comprising 1 Director as Executive director and 6 Directors as non-executive director
(s).

A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
During the year, 7 Board meetings were held i.e. on 11® May 2021, 31 August 2021,20" October 2021,30"

November 2021,15% December 2021, 20" December 2021, and 31% January 2022, The brief details of the
Directors who attended the number of meetings is as under;
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S No. | Name of the Director Category No. of
meetings
attended

1 ATLE VIDAR NAGEL JOHANSEN Non - Executive Director 07

2 JORDAHL PAUL Non - Executive Director 07

3 SANJAY SHARMA Executive Director 06

4 NAKKIM ARE Non - Executive Director 06

5 ELSE HELENA MARGARETA Non - Executive Director 06

6 KAROLINE RIIS Non - Executive Director 04

7 CLAES JOHAN WILHELMSSON Non - Executive Director 06

Cco TE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE

In pursuance to the provisions of Section 135 and Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013, CSR Committee
of the Board of Directors was formed to recommend

(a) the policy on Corporate Social Responsibility and implementation of the CSR projects or programs to be
undertaken by the company as per CSR Policy

(b) recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on CSR activities: and

(c) monitor the CSR Policy of the Company from time to time and institute a transparent monitoring
mechanism for implementation of CSR Projects/programme/activities under taken by the Company.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprised of following directors as its members as on 315
March, 2022:

Mr. Sanjay Sharma
Mr. Nakkim Are
Mr. Else Helena Margareta

The report of CSR as per The Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Palicy) Rules, 2014 is annexed
as Annexure - 1
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INTERNAL FI CONTROLS

The Company has in place adequate intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements. During
the year under review, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or
operation were observed.

IMPLEMENTATION OF QUARTERLY COMPLIANCE REPORTING MECHANISM

As per Section 134(5)(f) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directars confirms that they have devised
proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of applicable laws and that system were adequale
and are aperating effectively. In order to give due attention to the Compliance to applicable laws, a system
of reporting the compliance status on quarterly basis has been adopted by the Company, vide which each of
the functional heads reports the Compliance with respect to their department on a quarterly basis with
exception, if any thereof and a consclidated status on the same is put up before the Board.

BUY BACK OF SHARES
The Company has not Bought Back any Shares during the year.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the year under review, your Company has not invited any deposits from public/shareholders as per
Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014,

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are attached as Annexure - 2.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

S R Batliboi and Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of your Company, have been
appointed as the Statutory auditors till the Conclusion of 28" Annual General Meeting

The Company has received a letter from them to the effect that their appointment, if made, would we within
the limits prescribed under Section 141(3)(g) of the Companies act, 2013 and that they are not disqualified
for appointment.
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DIT RT

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their report. The
provisions relating to submission of Secretanal Audit Report is not applicable to the Company.

COST AUDIT

The provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are not applicable to the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risks are events, situations or circumstances which may lead to adverse consequences on the Company's
business. Effective risk management process is key to sustained operations thereby protecting shareholder
value, improving govemnance process, achieving strategic objectives and being well prepared for adverse
situations or unforeseen circumstances, if they occur in the lifecycle of the business activities. The Risk
Management Policy of the Company has been approved by the Board and is reviewed by the Board from
time to time. The policy has been carved out of the broader risk policy framework for the parent group in
general which is updated from time to time. Policy elaborates the detailed description of type of risk and its
monitoring plan. This framework seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on the business
objectives and enhance the Company's competitive advantage.

The business risk framework defines the risk management approach across the enterprise at various levels
and across various functions and is reviewed twice during the financial year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There were no matenially significant related party transactions made by the Company during the year with
Promoters, Directors, or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the

Company at large.
All other related party transaction entered during the year under review are attached as an Annexure - 3
OF ANNUAL RETURN

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Retumn in Form MGT 9 is annexed herewith as Annexure
4
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ENERGY CONVERSATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE

Particulars required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule, 8 of The Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings & Outgo, are set out in the Annexure 5 to this Director's Report.

COMPANY'S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION
AND DISCHARGE OF T TIES

The provisians of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are not
applicable to the Company

VIGIL MECHANISM

The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies (Meetings
of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT THE WORK PLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy (Policy) in line with the requirements of The
Sexual Harassment of Women at the Work Place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 Internal
Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All
employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under the Policy. There are no
Complaints received during 2020-22.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT, IF ANY

Except as disclosed above or elsewhere in this Annual Report, there have been no material changes and
commitments, which can affect the financial position of the Company between the end of financial year and
the date of the report.

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this Annual Report, during the financial year under review, no matenal
changes have occurred in the nature of the Company's business and generally in the classes of business in
which the Company has an interest

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS
OR TRIBUNALS

There has been no order passed by any Regulator, Court or Tribunal against the Company which can impact
its going concem status and company's operation in future.

Regd (e Favtiony:
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DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the requirements of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors
hereby state and confirm that:

a) Inthe preparation of the annual accounts for the year ending March 31, 2021, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper explanation refating to matenal departures,

b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgements and estimated that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for
that peniod;

¢) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other imegularities,

d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concerm basis;

e) The Company being unlisted, sub clause (e) of section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining
to laying down internal financial controls is not applicable to the Company

fy The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such system are adequate and operating effectively

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Your directors wish to place on record their appreciation and acknowledge with gratitude the support and co-

operation, extended by banks and financial institutions, government and shareholders and look forward to
having the same support in all our future endeavors.
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Your Directors also place on record their sincere appreciation for significant contribution made by the
employees at all levels through their dedication, hard work and commitment and look forward to their
continued support.

For and On behalf of the Board of Directors

Date: Bengaluru
Place: 27" September 2022
(DIN:01361367) (DIN:02581107)
!l"!ll (RS Fackoryg
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[Annexure -I]

Format for the Annual Report on CSR Activities to be Included in the Board's Report For Financial
Year 2021-2022

1 Brief outline on CSR Palicy of the Company

MTR CSR Vision is to Integrate MTR Social and Environmental responsibilities in a manner to ensure sustainability in operations
and relationships with Key stakeholders and Communities. While we will endeavour to achieve our larger objective of community
empowerment, our primary focus will be “Eradicating Hunger and Poverty'. “Promation of Education” and “Rural development”
MTR CSR Palicy is aligned to schedule VIl of the Companies Act and available at www mtrfoods com

2 Composition of CSR Committee

Sl. No. Name of Designation / | Number of meetings | Number of meetings
Director Nature of of CSR Committee | of CSR Committee
Directorship | held during the year | attended during the
year
1. Sanjay Sharma [Chairman, CSR 2 2
ICommittee
D, Are Nakkim ember. CSR 2 2
ommitiee
3. elena Giertz [Member, CSR (2 r
ommittee

3 Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board
are disclosed on the website of the company. — www. mtrfoods.com

4. details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3} of rule 8 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules. 2014, if applicable (attach the report). — Not

Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year,
if amy — Mot applicable

6 Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5). - Rs 11460 Lakhs

Regul Tifce Faitonty
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7 (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) - Rs 229 Lakhs

{b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years

il

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any : Nil

{d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c) : Rs 229 Lakhs

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year

Gk U5 BRCA 19REPTCOZ 1007

Orala Gracp =

B

T =gi o o8t 2100 | oF
Wetr wars mbfoods. com

Amount Unspent (in Rs. Lakhs)
;ﬂ::‘::? :_IT Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund specified
Unspent CSR Account as per| under Schedule VIl as per second proviso
oot tion 135(6 to section 135(5
(in Rs Lakhs.) section 135(6). o on 135(5).
Amount. Date of Name of the Amount. Date of
transfer. Fund transfer.
180 53 271082021 NA NA NA
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against angoing projects for the financial year: Nil
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)
SI.| Name of |ltem from| Local |Location of|Project| Amount |Amoun| Amount | Mode Mode of
[Noithe Project.| the list of | area [the project.|duratio| allocated |t spent| transferred | of | Implementation -
activities ,pr-sm n. forthe | inthe | to Unspent | Imple Through
in ). project (in jcurrentt CSR  |mentat| Implementing
Schedule Rs.). |financi|Accountfor| ion - Agency
Vil to the al Year| the project | Direct
Act. Stat [Distric inRs.)| asper |(Yes/N Name | CSR
® Section o). Registrat
in on
13;{:],.': number.
1.| Happiness [Eradicatin| yes | Karnataka || Year| 249 | 249 > No  |[Akshay
Box b ol a Patra
overty
nd
alnutriti
Regad. Offce ety
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Vet www.mtrioods. com

2 Lake Yes | Karnataka | | year| 2.20 1.50 0.70 Yes
Kejunevati
on Project
31 FPO- Yes | Kamataka | | vear| 2.72 2.4 0.38 Yes
Chilli
Project
Total 741 6.33 |08
{c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than aongoing projects for the financial year:
1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) {7 (8)
Si.| Name of the | Item from the list [Local| Location of | Amount Mode of Mode of implementation -
rlo. Project of activities in | area | the project. | spent [mplementation Through implementing agency.
wschedule Vil to the{(Yes/ for the - Direct
Act. No). project (Yes/No).
{in Rs,
Lakhs).
State.District.| Name. CSR
registration
number,
1| Happiness [Eradicating Yes| Karnataka | 31.5 Yes Akshaya patra
Box nger Poverty
: nd Malnutrition
2. | Ambulance [Rural Yes| Karnataka | 33.04 No
to Udipi velopment
Hospital |[Projects
3| CoviD isaster Yes | Karnataka | 16.20 No Grama Vikas
Support — Management
Grama Vikas
4| COVID [Disaster Yes| Kamataka | 6.54 No %ﬂ-f}-tsgﬁw For
Support — [Management Kiiom Eshaaion
CBIC
5 FPO ural Yes| Karnataka | 21.86 No
evelopment
rojects
6| Pediatric [Disaster Yes | Karnataka | 77.24 Yes Society Of Jesus
Icu Fiﬂnagfmunl Mary And Joseph St
Stanislaus Convent
Regd, OMice Factony
MTR Foods Private Limited MTR Foods Private Limited
Mo 1, 2nd K 3rd Floor Mo, Bo, Bormmasandia Ind. Area
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Total

179.78 |

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : Nil

(e} Amount spent on Impact Assessment. if applicable © Nil

{fi Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) 179.78 Lakhs

{g) Excess amount for set off, if any — Nil

years [Li)-{iv)]

Sl. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.)
(i [Two percent of average net profit of the company as Rs 229 Lakhs
per section 135(5)
(i) [Total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs 180 Lakhs
iy |[Excess amount spent for the financial year [{ii)-(i)] MNil
(iv) [Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes [Nl
or activities of the previous financial years, if any
(v) mount available for set off in succeeding financial il

g (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years Mil

Sl. No.| Preceding Amount Amount  Amount transferred to any] Amount
Financial nsferred to| spentin the | fund specified under | remaining
Year. Unspent CSR| reporting Schedule VIl as per  [to be spent
Account Financial section 135(6), if any. in
nder section| Year (in Rs. of| Amount| Date of succeeding
435 (6) (in Rs.| Lakhs). ""m'"“ in Rs far financial
Lakhs) Jhe | (inRs). transfer! years. (in
" Rs. Lakhs)
1 2020-21 103 3.2 NA - NA 39.7
2019-20 - - NA - NA Nil
2018-19 - - NA - NA Nil
Total
Regul. T e Factory:

BAT Cedified Campany
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial

year(s)
(1 (@) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
Sl.| Project | Name of the | Financial Project | Total | Amount [Cumulative Status of
[No.| 1D. Project. Yearin [duration.| amount |spenton| amount rtha project
which the llocated| the spent at -
project was for the |project in| the end of |Completed|
commenced. prnjuctr the reporting | /Ongoing.
(in Rs. [reporting| Financial
Lakhs). |Financial| Year. (in
Year (in |Rs. Lakhs)
Rs
Lakhs).
1 101/2021] FPO Project 2022 | year 53 0 0 Ongoing
Total 53

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset. furnish the details relating to the assel so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year . Nil

(asset-wise details).

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).
{b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acguisition of capital asset.

{c) Details of the entity or public authonity or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset 1s
registerad, their address etc.

{d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location
of the capital asset).

11 Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend twa per cent of the average net profil as per
section 135(5).

BRC Certified Company
Gk U151 36EA 1 Re6PTCOZ 1007
Oimla Orpule © oy
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The Company had to hold certain Projects in view of COVID-18 Pandemic and had taken COVID relief
measures on Priorty The Company had complied by Transferring the funds lo separate bank account and

will be spending the Funds for the cngoing ects in the coming financial years

Place; Bangalore
Date; 27 September 2022
Atle n
Directal
MTR Foods Private Limited MTR Foods Private Limited
ey, OFoe

MTR Foods Private Limited
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S TDae  of|Dale of |Dale of |[Name  of | Pupose for | Amt Rate of | Security | Prevalling
N | Loan Board Special Bomrower which  the | (Rs Lakhs) | Interest yield
Resolution | Resolution loan is
{If ANY) proposed o
be ulilized by
the recipient
23/09/2021 | 23/08/2021 | NA Potful India Pvt | Business 500 % Shares of | NA
Lid Purpose the
Promoter
NA
(ii) Detail of Investment
S| Date of | Dateof Board | Date  of | Name of investee Purpose for which the | Amt (Rs | Expected
.| Investment | Resolution special proceeds from investment is | Lakhs) rate  of
N resolution proposed to be ulilized by the return
0 (if any) recipient
NA
Regu OfMom Factorg:
MTR Foads Private Limited MTE Foaods Private Limited
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100 Feat Inner Ring Road, Efipura Hebbagodi, Anelkal Taluk
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(iii) Details of guarantee /security provided

S | Dale of | Date of Board | Date of Special | Name of | Purpose  for  which the | Amt. Commissio
N | providing Resolution resolution  (if | recipient | securitylguarantee is proposed n
o, | security/guar any) to be utilized by the recipient
antee
NA
Date: 27" September 2022
Place: Bangalore
Sa arma
Director
(DIN:02581107)
Begd. Offlce Factung
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Annexure - 3

FORM NO. AOC -2

(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred
to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain am's length transaction under third

proviso thereto:

| Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm's length basis:

B Certified Company

i U 51 3SICA 1998FTTO2 1007
Qrula O sep

C ey

MTR Foods Private Limited

Mo, 1, 2nd & 3rd Floor

wo Feut inner Ring Road, Ejipura
Ashwini Layout, Vivelnagar 50,
Bengalur, - 560 047 INDIA

T, sgn B0 4081 2100 [ OF
Wt weww.mirfcods.com

Sr. Particulars Details
No.
1. | Name (s) of the related party & nature of refationship NIL
2. | Nature of contragts/arrangements/iransaction NIL
3 | Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction NIL
4 Salient terms of the confracts or arrangements or NIL
transaction including the value, if any
5. | Justification for entering into such contracts of NIL
arrangemenls or transactions
6 Date of approval by the Board NIL
7. | Amount paid as advances, if any NIL
8 | Dale on which the special resolution was passed in NIL
General meeting as required under first proviso 1o
section 188
Begd Offce Factary
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2 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis:

sL. Particulars
No,

Details

1. | Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

Subsidiary

Rasoi Magic Foods (India) Private Limited -

2. | Nature of contracts/arrangements/iransaction

2 Purchases
3. Reimbursements
4. Interest on Loan

1. Sales, Services and Others

3 | Durabon of the conlracts /arangements ftransaction

5 years

4 | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangemenis of a Rs 72 Lakhs/

transaction including the value, if any

» Rs 132 Lakhs/-
* Rs 9Llakhs/-
» Rs. 16 lakhs/-
5 | Date of approval by the Board -
6. | Amount paid as advances, if any
SL. Particulars Details
No.
1. | Name (s) of the related party & nature of refationship | Crkla ASA - Ulimate Holding Company
2. | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Receipt of Services
Reimbursements
Share based payments
7| Duration of the contracts /arangements Aransaction | Monthly/Yearly/Upfront

4. | Salient terms of the contracts or arangements of « Rs 269 Lakhs

transaction including the value, if any

« Rs, 108 Lakhs
« FRsd1Lakhs
5. | Date of approval by the Board
6. | Amount paid as advances, if any
Begu (Hfiew VacRary

BAC Certified Campany
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SL. Particulars Details
H:* Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Eastern Condiments Private Limited -
Subsidiary Company
2. | Nature of contracts/arangements/transaction s Sale of Goods
e Purchase of Traded Goods
« Reimbursement of Expenses
3, | Duration of the contracts /arangements /transachion Monthly/Yearty/Upfront
4 | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements of « 109 Lakhs
transaction including the value, if any o e ekt
= 404 Lakhs
5. | Date of approval by the Board
6. | Amount paid as advances, if any
SL. Particulars Details
No.
1. | Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Orkla IT AS - Fellow Subsidiary
2 | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Reimbursements of expenses
3| Duration of the contracts /arrangements ftransaction | Monthiy/Yearly/Upfront
4 | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or s Hs 47 Lakhs
transaction including the value, if any
5. | Date of approval by the Board
6. | Amount paid as advances, if any
EHI; Particulars Details
T Nam (5) of he ralaled party & nature of rlalionship _| Jordan Asia Paciic SON, BHO - Fellow
Subsidiary
2 | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Purchase of traded Goods

Regid Wl Tty

MTR Foods Private Limited MTH Foods Private Limited

Mo, 1, 2nd & 3rd Floor No, Ba, Bommasandes ind. Area
o0 Feet Innes Ring Rosd, Ejllpura Hebbagodi, Anckal Taluk
Ashwini Layout, Viveknagar 50, Bengaluru - 560 o9
Bengalury - 560 047, INDUA INGIA

B Cantified Company

Cil: U151 36KA T996PTTC2VO0T

. +g1 B0 408 1100 [ af T g1 B0 4252 Aooo

Criln Gr3eg ©omeany Wit waww. mirfoods.com Foegy Mo rpB) 2828



BRC Cenifed Company
Cik: U151 36KA 1996PTTC21007
Orilg 0-aep Tompmng

Duration of the contracts /arrangements /iransaction Monthiy/Yearly/Upfront
Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or » Rs 339 Lakhs
transaction including the value, if any
Date of approval by the Bard
6. | Amount paid as advances, If any -
SL. Particulars Details
No.
1. | Name (s) of the related party & nature of refationship Potful India Private Limited - Associate
2. | Nature of contracts/arrangementsfiransaction » Interest on Loan
3. | Duration of the contracts /arangements /transaction Monthly/Yeary/Upfrant
4. | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements of s Rs 18 Lakh
transaction including the value, if any
Date of approval by the Board
Amount paid as advances, if any Rs Nil
For MTR FOODS PRIVATE LIMITED
Date: 27" Sep 2022
Place: Bangalore

Director

LETO R L
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An

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2021

[Pursuant to section 82(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and

Administration) Rules, 2014]

| REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS
CIN [J15136KA1996PTCO21007
Registration Dale 21.08.1996
Name of the Company MTR FOODS PRIVATE LIMITED

Category | Sub- Category of the Company

Category-Company limited by shares

Sub-Category-Indian Non-Government Company

Address of the Registered Office and contact

No.1, 2nd Floor, 100 Feet Inner Ring Road, Ejipura Ashwini

and Transfer Agent, if any

details Layout, Viveknagar, Bangalore - 560 047
Whether listed company No
Name. address and contact details of Registrar NA

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more af the total turmover of the company shall be stated

B&C Certilled Company
Gt L1 51 36KA, 1 996PTOO21007

Senita O sap FN AR

MTR Foods Private Limited

Mo, 1, 2nd & 37 Flnor

100 Feal Inner Ring Road, Ejipura
Asivwini Layout, Viveknagar S0,
Bengalun - 560 047 INMHA

. »91 Bo aol nwo oy
Fioh weew. mirfoods. com

gl. No. Mame and Description NIC Code of the % to fotal turnover of the company
of main products | Product! service
Services
1 Instant Foods & RTE 10618 42.3%
2 Spices & Masalas 10795 42.2%
3 ermicelll and Macaroni 10740 10.0%
Regd OFfice Fafury

MTH Foods Private Limited

Nao. Bo, Bommasandea ind. Area
Hebbagodi, Angkal Taluk
Bengaiuni - 560 0P

MDA
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]

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

IS. NO NAME AND CINIGLN HOLDING/ % of Applicable
ADDRESS OF SUBSIDIARY / | shares Section
THE ASSOCIATE held
COMPANY
1 Orkia Asia PacificiNA Holding 99,90
IPte Ltd
Rasol Magic Foodsh)15400KA2007PTC062358  [Subsidiary TES
2 [India) Pt Ltd
E astern U15490KA19B9PTC153490  [Subsidiary 57 82
3 Condiments Privale
L imited
BOT FUL  IndiadU74090KA2017TPTC103484  JAssociate 6.5
" Private Limited

(V. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

. i cgﬂ-w‘m Share Holding

No. of shares held at the beginning of | No. of shares held at the end of the %
the year year Chan

De- |Physical | Total %of |D |Physical |Total %of | gorin

A. Promoters

(1) Indian (A)(1)

(2)Foreign

a) NRls - Individuals

b} other - individuals

c) Bodies Corporate 1,23,30,269 |1,23,30,269 | 100% 1,23,30.269 |1,23,30,269 |100% |-

BT Certified Company
Gk UV ET IRA 1996FTCO2 1007

Srale Ofow@ TomB

i

Regu Oflce

MTR

Foods Private Limited

Ha. 1, 2nd & 3rd Floor

100 Feat inner Ring Road, Eilpura
Ashwini Layout, Viveknagar 50,

Bergalurs - 560 o). INDIA

. eg1 Bo 408y 2100 [ OF

Lol ]

wewrw, mitrfoods. com

Factury

MTH Foods Private Limited

Nao. Bo, Bommasandea (nd. Azea
Hebbagod), Anckal Taluk
Bengalum

INDHA

560 o9

T egi B0 4252 RODOD
Fowgn Bo xp83 2828




d)Banks / Fl

&) Any Other..

Sub-Total (A)(2)

1,23,30,269

1,23,30,26%

100% 1,23,30,269 | 1,23.30,269 | 100%

Total Shareholding
of Promoters(A)
=(AN1)+AN2)

1,23,30,269

1,23,30,269

100% 1,23.30.269 |1,23,30,268 | 100%

B. Public
Shareholding

(1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds JUTI |-

bj Banks/ Fl

¢) Central Gowt

d) Venture Capital
Funds

&) Venture Capital
Funds

f| Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):

{2) Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corporate |-

1) Indian

Il) Overseas

b) Individuals

i, Individual
Shareholder
5 holding
naminal

BRC Cenifed Company

Gt T 38ICA, 1996 TCO21007

Ornla Group T W

Begul (1w

MTE Foods Private Limited

Nio. 1, 2nd A 3rd Floar

100 Feal inner Ring Road, Ejipura
Ashwelni Layout, Yiveknagar 50,
Bengalur - 460 0§7 MDA

I +g1 B0 4081 2100 [ oF
et waww,mitrfoods.com

LR T

MTH Foods Private Lmitied

No. 8o, Bammasandra (nd. Area
Hebbagodh, Anckal Taluk
Bangaturu - 60 099

INLILA
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share
capital uplo
1 Lakh

¥

Individual
Shareholder
5 holding
nominal
share
capital in
excess of 1
lakh

¢) Others (specify)

Shares held
by Pakistani
Citizens
vested with
the
Custodian
of Enemy

Property

Other 5
Foreign
Nationals

il

Foreign
Bodies

MRl OCBs

Clearing
Members /
Clearing
House

Wi

Trusts -

wil,

Limited .
Liability
Partnarship

Wil

Fareign
Portfolio
Investor |
Corporale)

BRC Cenifled Company
CiN U ST 38KA 1996PTCO21007
Oimla Or3ep WS GBI

Regui e

MTRE Foods Private Limited

Mo, 1, 2nd & 3rd Floor

wo Feat inner Ring Road, Elipura
Ashwini Layout, Viveknagar 50,
Bergalur - 560 oayr. INDIA

T, sg1 Bo 4081 2100 [ OF
frn weew, mirfoods. com
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MTH Foods Private Limited

Mo, Ro, Bormmasandra ind. Area
Hebbagodl, Anckal Taluk
Bengalan - 560 099
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ix Qualified
Foreign
Investar

Sub-Total (B)(2)

Total Public
Shareholding

(BI=(B)(1)*(B)(2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for GDRs
& ADRs

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

1,23,30,269

1,23,30,269

100%

1,23,30,269

1,23,30,268

100%

i) Shareholding of Promoters:

For each of the Promoter

Shareholders

the year

Shareholding at the beginning of

Shareholding at the end of the year

No. of Shares

% of total shares
of the company

No. of Shares

% of total
shares of the
company

Orkla Asia Pacifiic Pte Ltd

1,23,30.209

§9.9998%

1,23,30,208

99.9999%

Orkla Foods Ingredients AS, |60

Norway

0.0005%

&0

0.0005%

(li)Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)- Yas

Shareholding at the beginning of | Cumulative Shareholding during the
the year year
No. of Shares % of total shares |No. of Shares % of total
of the company shares of the
company
At the beginning of the year 1.23.30,269 100% 1,23,30,269 100%
Change During the year 0 100% i} 100%
At the End of the Year 1,23,30,269 100% 1,23,30.269 100%
Begid Offlce Factiry

BEC Cenifled Company

SN 1 B1ASKA 1996PTOOII00T

Sl O T

T ompony

MTR Foods Private Limited

Mo. 1, 2nd & 3rd Floor

o0 Feel inner Ring Road, Ejlpura
Ashwini Layout, Viveknagar 50,

Beogalur

560 047, INIHA

T, +g1 Bo 481 oo [ oy
W wwew. mirfoods.com

MTH Foods Private Limited

Mo, Bo, Bommasandm ind. Amea

Hebbagodi, Anckal Taluk
Bengalang - 560 099
MO,
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders {other than Directors, Promoters and Hoiders of GDRs

and ADRs);

(v)Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: NIL

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including Interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

Secured Loans excluding
deposits

Unsecured Loans | Deposits

| Total Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the
beginning of the
financial year

i) Principal Amount

1000

1000

iij Interest due but not
paid

iy Interest accrued but
not due

Total (i4iiiii)

1000

in
during

Change
Indebtedness
the financial year

* Addition

4000

* Reduction

(2500)

Net Change

1500

: (2500)
i 1500

Indebtedness at the end
of the financial year

i) Principal Amount

ij) Interest due but not
paid

i) Interest accrued but
not due

Total (i#iiii

2500

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

BEC Cerified Company

GG U1 5T36KA 1OSGPTCO21007

Orala O/ sap Tompany

g, Office

MTR Foods Private Limited

Mo 1, 2nd & 3rd Floor

100 Fest inner Ring Road, Ejlpura
Asmwini Layout, Viveknagar 50,
Bengalury - g6o oar. INDIA

T. sg1 B0 408 2100 [ OF
Wt www.mirfoods.com

F e Ry
MTR Foods Private Limited

No. Ba, Bommasandia Ind, Area

Hebbagodl, Anekal Taluk
Bengalun - 560 S99
INDIA

T =g Bo 4252 Booo
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A Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager. Nil

B. Remuneration to other directors: Nil

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MOD/MANAGER/WTD

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

SN. Particulars of Name of Key Managerial Personnel Total Amount
Remuneration (In Rs. Lakhs)
Designation CEO CFO cs Total
1 Gross Salary 707 259 26 992
TOTAL 1

ViI. PENALTIES /| PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NIL

Date: Bengaluru
Place: 27" Sep 2022

BRC Cenified Compamy
CiNG L VS B8 1994PTOO2 1007

Crnig Orsep T aEpoanyg

For and On be

of Directo

Dimch:lr

(DIN:02581107)

Begd Office

MTR Foods Private Limited

Mo, 1, and A 3rd Floor

100 Fest Inner Ring Road, Ejipura
Ashwini Layeut, Viveknagar 50,
Bengalury - 560 04y, INDIA

T g1 B0 4ofa 2100 [ o7
Wet www,mirfoods. com

Factary

MTR Foods Private Limited

No, Bo, Bormmasandm ind, Area
Hebbagodl, Anckal Taluk
Bangaluru - 560 009
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ANNEXURE -5
(Pursuant to Section 134 (3)(m) of Companies Act, 2013 & Rule 8 (2) of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Your Company had established a 300 Kw Solar power on the roof-tops of manufacturing plants in Bengaluru, which
was commissioned in 2015-16. This plant is working efficiently and continues to yield satisfactory resuits and a
substantial % of the power consumption in the factory is met by this “Green energy’ initiative. In addition to this roof-
top solar power plant, your Company had, in the previous year, entered into a supply agreement with & solar power
producer in Kamataka whereby up-to 70% of the power requirement of your Company's factory will be met by salar
energy. This amangement, commissioned at the current year end, is on an open access model which means NIL capex
but energy gains of up-to Rs 8-10m p.a. will be realized by your Company.

mmmmammﬁmmwﬂwmdmmmm its efforts to conserve enemy efficently.
Detaiis of energy consumption are given below.

BRC Cemifien Company
CiN: S 1ASKA 1994PTLO21007

Srula O sup ToOMmBONY

MTR Foods Private Limited
Na. 1, 2nd & 3rd Fioor

Details 02122 2020-21

Electricity

Purchased Units(Kwh) 103.32.034 59 84,904

Total Cost{Rs Lakns) 82236 78575

Cast Per Unit 80 16

Ofher Consumption of Fuel

PNGILPG

Quantity(MT/BTU) (201820 - MT) 5146 5272

Total CostiRs m Lakhs} 5182 4234

Cost Per TonBTU 1201 803

Brigquette

Quantty(MT) 4521 4215

Total Cost (Rs in Lakhs) 263,92 256,98

Cost Per Ton 6280 8097

HSD

Quantity(Lirs) 17730 119260
Rogd. [t Factory:

MTH Foods Private Limited
Ho. Bo, Bommasanda (nd. &ea

w0 Fesl inner Ring Road, Ejlpura Hebbagodi, Anekal Taluk
Ashwini Layout, Viveknagar 50, Bengaluru - 560 o9
Bangalury - 560 ogr. INDIA INDHA

7. +gs Bo 4ol 2s00 [ oF
Wit weew.mirfoods.com
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Total Cost (Rs in Lakhs) 10318 7849
Cost Per Litre 876 658
B, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

ThaemsngmumtTmamm;iaﬁaiowpmﬁmanufmﬂngmphm Bengaluru has been upgraded significantly in
tlﬂyaari'm&-‘lﬁbyastalﬁﬁ!ﬂrlgasmi&d-ﬂ-&mEmLMTmmﬂmpdmmemﬁmaﬁmnwﬂmmmaﬂadmm
facility. A new standalone Sewerage Treatment Plant (STP) was also set up in the previous year, to ensure that the combined
mmmmm%mwmmmwHhaﬁﬁnq.ﬁuh&mﬂanﬁhaﬁmﬂaﬁmdwm
mmmmmwmmmmmnmmmmmmmmmmmm.w
ﬂmmhﬁm.mrﬁwyhhﬂrmaﬂhhmﬂﬁmmﬂdammwmﬂ

(C). FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Particulars Current Year Previous year
Foreign Exchange Earnings (Rs in Lakhs) 9440 6974.88
Foreign Exchange Outgo (R in Lakhs) 1016 128206

For and On behalf of the Board of Directors

|
|

Date: Bengaluru =
Place: 27" Sep 2022 Sanjay
Director
(DIN:02581107)

Rege Offve

MTR Foods Private Limited

Mo, 1, 3nd & 3rd Floar

1o Feut inner Ring Road, Eflpum
Ashwinl Layout, Viveknagar 50,

BRC Certilied Company
it UTS1IGIA 1996PTTO21007
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MTR Foods Private Limited

No. Ba, Bommasandra ind. Area
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S.R. BATLIBO’ & ASSOCIATES LLP ‘l’SéhCﬁtl;)'c’”Canberra Block

No. 24, Vittal Mallya Road
Chartered Accountants Bengaluru - 560 001, India

Tel : +91 80 6648 9000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
To the Members of MTR Foods Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of MTR Foods Private Limited (“‘the
Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Standalone Statement
of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Cash Flow
Statement and the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the
Standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its profit including
other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements’ section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Standalone financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director’s Report, but does not include the Standalone financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the

S/
if &
‘ m
S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership witn LLP Identity No, AAB-4295 i\ (‘:
Reqd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block 'B', 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016 A @
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S.R. BATLIBOI1 & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the Standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if; individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of [ndia in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act based on our audit, we give
in the “Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

©

(d)

(e)

()

(@

(h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement
of Other Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Cash Flow Statement and Standalone Statement
of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these Standalone
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2” to this report;

The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2022;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Standalone financial statements — Refer note 41 to the Standalone financial statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;
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iii.

V.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 52 to the Standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds
by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 52 to the Standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company
from any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Place: Bz-ngaluru
Date: September 27, 2022
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state

that:

®

(i)

(a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(a)(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

(b) All property, plant and equipment have not been physically verified by the Management during the
year but there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in note 3 to the financial
statements included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the Company except title
deed of an immovable property, in the nature of the land, as indicated in the below table are not held
in the name of the Company:

Description of | Gross Held in name | Whether Period held Reason for not
property carrying of promoter, being held in
value (Rs. in director  or the name of

lakhs) their relative Company
L | L or employee | = —
Plot 88, 460 | Karnataka No 19 Years Company has
Bommasandra, Industrial Area made an
Bengaluru Development application to
Board KIADB  for
(KIADB) execution of
absolute sale

deed in its

favour, which
is  currently
pending at
KIADB.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets)
or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2022.

(e) As disclosed in note 52 to the Standalone financial statements, there are no proceedings initiated or
are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(a) The inventory has been physically verified by the Management during the year except for
inventories lying with third party. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable and the
coverage and procedures for such verification is appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in
aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed. Inventories lying with third parties have been
confirmed by them as at March 31, 2022 and no discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each
class of inventory were not noticed.

Ay
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(ii1)

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of
security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) During the year the Company has provided loans, stood guarantee to companies and other parties
as follows:

Guarantees (Rs. in lakhs) Loans (Rs. in lakhg

Aggregate amount granted/ provided
during the year
- Subsidiaries
- Associates
- Others
To Employees
To Vendor
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet
date in respect of above cases
- Subsidiaries
- Associates
- Others
To Employees
To Vendor

R 600 |
500

359
1,270 -

550
500

1,270

(b) During the year the guarantees provided and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and
guarantees to companies, other parties are not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

(¢) The Company has granted loans during the year to companies, other parties where the schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated except for a loan granted to one
company repayable on demand, and the repayment or receipts are regular except in the following cases:

Name of the entity | Amount Principal/Interest | Due Date Date of | Extent of
(Rs. in payment delay
lakhs)

Rasoi Magic 4.98 | Interest September October 05, 5 Days

Foods (India) 30,2021 | 2021

Private limited 5.43 | Interest December March 25, 84 Days

(Subsidiary) _ 31,2021 2022 |

5.27 | Interest March 31, | May 5, 2022 35 Days
— 2022 N
Potful [ndia Private 9.49 | Interest January 05, | January 21, 16 Days
Limited(Associate) 2022 2022

(d) There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more than ninety days.

(e) There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties which was fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or

extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.
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(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(f) As disclosed in note 13 to the Standalone financial statements, the Company has granted loans
repayable on demand to a company. Of these following are the details of the aggregate amount of loans
granted to promoters or related parties as defined in clause (76) of Section 2 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”):

Particulars Related Parties (Rs. in lékh;‘
Aggregate amount of loans

- Repayable on demand 550
Percentage of loans to the total loans 42%

Provisions of Section 185 of the Act in respect of a loan given to a company in which a director of the
Company is a director have been complied with. There are no guarantees or securities given to which
Section 185 of the Act is applicable. In respect loans and guarantees given, provisions of Section 186
of the Act, as applicable, have been complied with by the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules
made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the
Act, for the products of the Company.

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, duty
of customs, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and
explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the records of the Company, the dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, goods and
services tax, customs duty, value added tax, excise duty and cess on account of any dispute, are as
follows:

Name of the Nature | Amount of | Payment | Period to which | Forum where dispute
statute of dues dispute under the amount is pending
(Rs. in protest relates
Lakhs) (Rs in
L Lakhs) |
The Central Excise 8 - | March 2006 to Commissioner of
Excise and duty May 2007 Central Excise &
Customs Act, Customs (Appeals)
| 1944

The Central Excise 70 - | November 2004 | Honorable Supreme
Excise and duty to February Court of India
Customs Act, 2006
1944
The Central Excise 1 -* | March 2011 to Customs Excise
Excise and duty December 2012 | Service Tax Appellate
Customs Act, Tribunal
1944 _
The Central Excise X -* | January 2014 to | Commissioner of
Excise and duty December 2014 | Central Excise &
Customs Act, Customs (Appeals)
1944




S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

(viii)

(ix)

*Rounded off to nearest lakhs

Name of the Nature | Amountof | Payment | Period to which | Forum where dispute
statute of dues dispute under | the amount is pending
(Rs. in protest | relates
Lakhs) (Rs in
- | Lakhs)
The Central Excise -* -* | January 2015 to | Commissioner of
Excise and duty December 2015 | Central Excise &
Customs Act, Customs (Appeals)
| 1944 |
The Central Excise 11 'l | March 2011 to Customs Excise
Excise and duty December 2011 | Service Tax Appellate
Customs Act, Tribunal
| 1944 —
The Central Excise 66 66 | January 2012 to | Commissioner of
Excise and duty October 2013 Central Excise &
Customs Act, Customs (Appeals)
| 1944 _
The Central Excise 43 43 | November 2013 | Commissioner of
Excise and duty to October 2014 | Central Excise &
Customs Act, Customs (Appeals)
1944
The Central Excise 38 38 | November 2014 | Commissioner of
Excise and duty to October 2015 | Central Excise &
Customs Act, Customs (Appeals)
1944 - B
Karnataka Value | VAT/ 251 - | December 2006 | Honorable Supreme
Added Tax Act, | CST to September Court of India
2003 2007
Maharashtra VAT 97 - | April 2013 to Joint Commissioner of
Value Added March 2014 Sales tax
Tax Act, 2002
Maharashtra CST 27 - | April 2014 to Joint Commissioner of
Value Added March 2015 Sales tax
Tax Act, 2002 B

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of

interest thereon to any lender.

(b) As disclosed in note 52 to the Standalone financial statements, the Company has not been declared
wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(¢) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the requirement to
report on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(¢) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken

any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidig}&_

associates or joint

ventures.
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)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries,
joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) No fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by us in
Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Act. Therefore, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xii)(a), (b) & (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 188 of the Act where applicable
and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards. The provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company and
accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to Section
177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period
under audit have been considered by us.

According to the information and explanations given by the Management, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in Section
192 of the Act.

(a) The provisions of Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year. The Company has not incurred
cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year. R A
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(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

| 2021-22 53.22 | : 53.22

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to
report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 46 to the Standalone financial statements, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule V11 of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with
second proviso to sub section 5 of Section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 39 to
the financial statements.

(b) In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent amount to a special account,

within a period thirty days from end of the financial year in compliance with Section 135 (6) of the Act

as disclosed in note 39 to the Standalone financial statements, except in respect of the following:
Financial year Amount unspent on | Amount transferred to | Amount  transferred

corporate social | Special Account | after due date (Date of

responsibility activities | within 30 days from | transfer — September

for ongoing projects | end of the financial | 27, 2022) (Rs. in
(Rs. in lakhs) | year lakhs)

For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
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Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 27, 2022
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Financial
Statements of MTR Foods Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone financial statements of
MTR Foods Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of
the Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“ICATI”)These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these Standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these
Standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these Standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these Standalone
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these Standalone

financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to Standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Lij;a_l_‘ﬂﬁi.'&[\ b
%/ '\\'{I_.’.,\
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accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to Standalone financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of Management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper Management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Standalone financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to Standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
Standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICALI.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Membershijp Number: 104315
UDIN: 22/04315AVNEAI2429

Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 27, 2022



MTR Foods Private Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Notes As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 19,004 18,673
Capital work-in-progress 3 157 224
Right-of-use assets 4(a) 2,018 2,001
Intangible assets 5 144 138
Financial assets
Investment in subsidiaries and associates 6(a) 1,88,440 1.88,440
Other investments 6(b) - 39
Loans fh 542 54
Other financial assets 8 598 491
Other non-current assets 9 17 134
Deferred tax assets (net) 10 851 698
2,11,771 2,10,892
Current assets
Inventories 1 9,629 9,000
Financial assets
Investments 6(c) 11,040 3,093
Trade receivables 12 2,414 1,786
Loans 13 754 167
Cash and cash equivalents 14 224 766
Bank balances other than above 15 - 1,000
Other financial assets 16 489 196
Other current assets 17 1,776 1,651
26,326 17,659
Total assets 2,38,097 2,28,551
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 18 1,233 1,233
Other equity 19 1,85,994 1,77,714
Total equity 1,87,227 1,78,947
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 4(b) 2,654 2,698
Other financial liabilities 24(a) 354 29,619
Government grants 20 107 107
Other non-current liabilities 21 93 74
3,208 32,498




MTR Foods Private Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Notes As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 4(b) 480 435
Borrowings 22 2,500 1,000
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 23 748 1,183
enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 23 6,357 7,889
enterprises and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities 24(b) 34,531 3,327
Other current liabilities 25 1,195 1,170
Provisions 26 1,700 1,872
Current tax liabilities (net) 27 151 230
47,662 17,106
Total liabilities 50,870 49,604
Total equity and liabilities 2,38.097 2.28.551
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of

ICAI Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004 MTR Foods Private Limited
Chartered Accountants

Sanjay Sharma
Director & Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 02581107

K. Aneesh
Company Secretary

(Membership no: 32470)

Membetship no.: 104315

-

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 27, 2022 Date: September 27, 2022




MTR Foods Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs except share data and per share data, unless stated otherwise)

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Income

Revenue from operations 28 97,489 95,018
Other income 29 636 870
Total income 98,125 95,888
Expenses

Cost of raw materials and packing materials consumed 30 43,499 41,412
Purchase of traded goods 31 8,204 7,154
(Increase)/ decrease in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress 32 (653) (739)
and traded goods

Employee benefits expense 33 11,633 11,694
Depreciation and amortisation expense 34 2,939 3,066
Finance costs 35 2,580 465
Other expenses 36 18,161 16,787
Total expenses 86,363 79,839
Profit before tax 11,762 16,049

Tax expense:

- Current tax 37 3,766 4,309

- Deferred tax charge / (credit) 37 (173) (180)
Total tax expense 3,593 4,129
Profit for the year 8,169 11,920

Other comprehensive income/ (loss) (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss:

(a) Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 118 (26)
Income tax effect on above 37 30) 6

(b) Fair value gains/ (losses) on equity instruments 39 (14)
Income tax effect on above 37 10 3

Total other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year, net of tax 59 (€1}
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year 8,228 11,889

Eamings per equity share [nominal value of shares: Rs. 10 (March 31,
2021: Rs. 10)]

Basic 50 63 121
Diluted 50 63 121
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of

ICAI Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004 MTR Foods Private Limite
Chartered Accountants

per Suhil Gaggar Adle Vidar Johnsen Sanjay Sharma
Parine Chairman Director & Chief Executive Officer
Membership no.: 104315 DIN: 01361367 DIN: 02581107

ey

P
fc—Aneesh

B.(w)Shenoy

Chi¢f Financial Ol’ﬁccr Company Secretary
(Membership no: 32470)

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 27, 2022 Date: September 27, 2022



MTR Foods Private Limited
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Notes March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
A. Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 11,762 16,049
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Government grants received - (10)
Share based payment expenses 52 46
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,338 2,398
Amortisation of intangible assets 100 161
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 501 507
Interest expense - others 2,177 50
Interest expense - lease liabilities 328 352
Unwinding of security deposit (26) 21
Gain on termination/modification of right-of-use assets ¢)) -
Provision for doubtful debts and advances - 6
Write back of expected credit loss ©) -
(Profit)/ loss on sale of current investments (149) (514)
Bad debts / Advance written off = 5
Provision for balances with government authorities 150 -
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss (52) (10)
Liabilities no longer required written back 34) 50
(Gain)/Loss on sale of property plant and equipment “) (15)
Assets written off - 3
Interest income (121) (60)
Loss on assets held for sale - 18
Unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain) (8) (23)
Operating profit before working capital changes 17,004 18,892
Movements in Working capital :
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables (601) (154)
Decrease / (increase) in inventories (629) (1,773)
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets and other assets 699) (224)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payable (1,946) 1,807
Increase/(decrease) in financial liabilities and other liabilities (143) (50)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions (54) 90
Cash generated from operations 12,932 18,588
Direct tax paid (net) (3.861) (4,199)
Net cash from operating activities (A) 9,071 14.389
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (including (2,636) (1,395)
capital work in progress and capital advances)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 4 26
Purchase of units of mutual funds (38,100) (38,300)
Sale of units of mutual funds 30,350 42,400
Loan given to subsidiary company (600) (850)
Repayment of loan by subsidiary company 50 900
Loan given to associate company (500) -
Repayment of loan by associate - 75
Proceeds from disposal of stake in associate - 175
Investments in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three (4,500) (3,000)
months)
Proceeds of investment in bank deposits (having original maturity of more
than three months) 5,500 2,000
Investment in shares of subsidiary - (1,27,438)
Interest received 137 52
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (10,295) (1,25,355)




MTR Foods Private Limited
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Not
ores March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

C. Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity shares on a rights basis, net of issue related - 1,11,266

expenses

Proceeds from short term borrowings 4,000 1,000

Repayment of short term borrowings (2,500) (350)

Interest paid (33) (32)

Repayment of lease liabilities (457) (393)

Interest on lease liabilities paid (328) (352)
Net cash from financing activities (C) 682 1,11,139
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (542) 173
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 766 593
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 224 766
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
On current accounts 222 764
Cash on hand 2 2
Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note 14) 224 766
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements,

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
ICAI Fimm registration number: 101049W/E300004
Chartered Accountants

pgr Sunil Gaggar

Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 27, 2022

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
MTR Foods Private Limited

Atle VidarlJohnsen Sanjay Sharm

Chateman Director & Chief Executive Officer

DIN: 01361367 DIN: 02581107

=
K, Ancesh
Company Secretary

Chief Financial Offiger

LY (Membership no: 32470)

Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 27, 2022




MTR Foods Private Limited

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

a) Equity share capital

Nos Amount
Equity sharcs of Rs, 10 each, issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
As at March 31, 2021 1,23,30,269 1,233
As at March 31, 2022 1,23,30.269 1,233
For movemenl in share capital, refer note 18.
b) Other Equity
Shares to be issued . i
Reserve and surplus onTaccountlof com,wehenswe
. . income
nvest t Total
Security Capital . Other equity- ! v.es' SO Fair value gains/ o
. . Retained subsidiary (refer
premium redemption . share based (losses) on equity
earnings note 51) . &
reserve reserve payment instruments

As at April 1, 2020 - 337 27,230 46 B 152 27,765
[ssue of shares during the year 1,11,014 - - - - 1,11,014
Profit for the year - 11,920 - - 11,920
Other comprehensive income/(loss) (net of tax) - (20) - (11) (31)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 11,900 - - (11) 11,889
Compensation cost related to employee share based 85

- - - - - 85
payment plans (refer note 42)
Cross charge from ultimate holding company for ) 39) B . (39)
employee share based payment plans
Redeemable optionally convertible preference shares . 20,000 27.000
(ROCPS) to be issued on account of acquisition i ’
As at March 31, 2021 1,11,014 337 39,130 92 27.000 141 1,77,714
Profit for the year - - 8,169 - - - 8,169
Other comprehensive income/(loss) (net of tax) - - 88 (29) 59
Total Comprehensive income for the year - - 8,257 - = 29) 8,228
Compensation cost related to employee share based . 91 91
payment plans (refer note 42) .
Cross charge from ultimate holding company for ) 39) . (39)
employee share based payment plans
As at March 31, 2022 1,11.014 337 47,387 144 27,000 112 1,85,994

Summary of significant accounting policies, Refer Note 2.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements
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1. Corporate Information

MTR TFoods Private Limited (“the Company” or “MTR”) was incorporated at Bangalore in 1996 under the Companies Act,
1956, and is engaged in the manufacture and sale of ready-to-cat food products, instant food mixes, spices and masalas,
vermicelli, milk-based products, confectionery and beverages. The Company also undertakes trading of certain food products
such as, spices, spice mix, pickles, papads and oral care products. The Company is headquartered in Bengaluru and has its
manufacturing facilities in Bengaluru.

The standalone tinancial statements were approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on September 27,
2022.

2. Significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of Preparation:

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and
presentation requirement of division I of Schedule ITI to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule ITI), as
applicable to the standalone financial statements.

These standalone financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis as explained in the accounting policies
below, except for the following assets and liabilities measured at fair value as required by the relevant Ind AS:

a) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value; and

b) Derivative financial instruments;

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs (TINR 00,000), except when
otherwise indicated.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies:
(a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Standalone Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification. An
asset is treated as current wheu it is:

+  Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

= Held primarily for the purpose of trading

»  Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

»  Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

» Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

= It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

= Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period: or

«  There is no conditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
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The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

(b) Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees Lakhs (‘INR 00,000°), which is the functional currency of the
Company.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the entities at their respective functional currency spot rates at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses average rate if the
average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised
in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on
the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the
transaction is the date on which the Company initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Company determines the
transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

(¢) Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivative instruments and investments (other than investment in
subsidiaries and associates) at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(i) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:
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(0 Level 1 — inputs are quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date

(i) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

(iii) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the standalone financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transters have occwrred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Fair-value related disclosures for financial instruments and non-financial assets that are measured at fair value or where fair
values are disclosed, are summarised in the following notes:-

@) Disclosure for fair valuation methods, significant estimates and judgements Note 47 and 2.3
(ii) Financial Instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) Note 6a, 6b, 6¢c, 7, 8, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 22, 23,
24a, 24b, 4b and 47

(d) Revenue recognition

Revenue from contract with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically
controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

To recognize revenues, the Company applies the following five- step approach:

o Identify the contract with a customer;

»  Identify the performance obligation in the contract;

e« Determine the transaction price;

s  Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
e Recognise revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied.

(i) Sale of goods:

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received receivable net of returns and allowances, trade discounts
and volume rebate, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf
of the government.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which
a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated if any. In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the
Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, noncash
consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

Goods and Services tax (GST) is not received by the Company in its own account. Rather, it is collected on value added to
commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

(ii) Variable consideration:

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration to which
it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. The
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contracts for the sale of goods provide with the customers with a right to return, cash discounts, and volume rebates/trade
incentives. The rights of return, cash discount and volume rebates/trade incentives give rise to variable consideration.

¢ Volume rebates

The Company gives volume rebates/trade incentives to customers once the quantity of products purchased during the period
exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the customer. The Company
applies the most likely amount method or the expected value method to estimate the variable consideration in the contract.
The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration is primarily driven by the number of volume
thresholds contained in the contract. The most likely amount is used for those contracts with a single volume threshold, while
the expected value method is used for those with more than one volume threshold. The Company then applies the
requirements on constraining estimates in order to determine the amount of variable consideration that can be included in
the transaction price and recognised as revenue. A refund liability for the expected future rebates (i.e., the amount not
included in the transaction price).

e Right to return

As a practice, the Company provides a customer with a right to return in case of any defects or on grounds of quality. The
Company uses the expected value method to estimate the goods that will not be returned because this method best predicts
the amount of variable consideration to which the Company will be entitled. The requirements in Ind AS 115 on
constraining estimates of variable consideration are also applied in order to determine the amount of variable
consideration that can be included in the transaction price. For goods that are expected to be returned, instead of revenue,
the Company recognises a refund liability. A right of return asset and corresponding adjustment to change in inventory is
also recognised for the right to recover products from a customer.

(iii) Rendering of services

Revenue from the management services is recognized as and when services are rendered. The Company collects goods and
services tax on behalf of the government and, therefore, it is not an economic benefit flowing to the Company. Hence it is
excluded from the revenue.

(iv) Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of
time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section (n)
Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is
due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

v) Assets and liabilitics arising from rights of return

Right of return assets

A right-of-return asset is recognised for the right to recover the goods expected to be returned by customers. The assct is
measured at the former carrying amount of the inventory, less any expected costs to recover the goods and any potential
decreases in value. The Company updates the measurement of the asset recorded for any revisions to its expected level of
returns, as well as any additional decreases in the value of the returned products.
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Refund liabilities

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from the
customer and is measured at the amount the Company ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer. The Company
updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting
period. Refer to above accounting policy on variable consideration.

(vi) Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR).
EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the tinancial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost
of a financial liability. When calculating EIR, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in
Other income in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

(vii) Dividend Income

Revenue is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders
approve the dividend.

(viii)  Export incentives income

Export incentives under various schemes notified by government are accounted for in the year of exports based on eligibility
and when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same,

(e¢) Income-tax
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized either in other comprehensive income or
in equity, in correlation to the underlying transaction. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit or taxable profit or
loss.

» In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with the investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and if it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foresecable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
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against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss.

o In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized
or liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized either in other comprehensive income or in
equity, in correlation to the underlying transaction.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Goods and Services Tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax paid, except:

i)  When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case,
the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

ii) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables
in the balance sheet.

(f) Property, plant and equipment

On transition to Ind AS, the Company had elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property, plant and
equipment recognised as at April 1, 2019 measured as per the Indian GAAP and use that carrying value as deemed cost
of property, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. The cost comprises of purchase price,
taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses directly attributable and related to acquisition and installation of the
concerned assets and are further adjusted by the amount of tax credit availed wherever applicable. When significant parts of
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific
useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
statement of profit and loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its
use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.
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Freehold land is carried at historical cost. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the component/ part has a
cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining
asset.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gains or losses arising from derecognition of the
assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the cairying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

The assets' residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed and adjusted prospectively if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at based on the
useful lives estimated by the management except in case of leaschold improvements.

. Useful life used by the Useful life as per Schedule
Particulars . 3
management (in years) IT (in years)
Plant and machinery 5-12 15
Office equipment/ Computers 3-5 5
Factory buildings 30 30
Electrical fittings 10 10
Furniture and fixtures IR 10 10
Vehicles 6 8

Leasehold Improvements are depreciated over the primary period of the lease, or useful life, whichever is lower, on a straight-
line basis.

In respect of assets acquired which have been previously used by another party, depreciation is provided over the remaining
useful lives of such assets determined within their overall useful lives as stated above.

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates certain items
of property, plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule
II to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

(g) Intangible assets

On transition to Ind AS, the Company had elected to continue with the carrying value of all its intangible assets recognised
as at April 1, 2019 measured as per the Indian GAAP and use that carrying value as deemed cost of intangible assets.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried
at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding
capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in
which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite,

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite usetul life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected usetul life or
the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
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amorlisation period or method. as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense
on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of
carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are lested for impairment annually, either individually or
at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite
life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.

A summary of amortisation policies applied to the Company's intangible assets is as below;
Assets Useful life (in vears) [
Software 3 years |
(h) Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing
the right to use the underlying assets.

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of
the assets, as follows:

Category of assets Estimated Useful life
Building 2to 11 Years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject
to impairment.

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.
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In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date,
the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. Tn
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change
in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such
lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The standard provides specific transition requirements and practical expedients, which have been applied by the Company
as follows:

e  Applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with lease term that ends within 12 months of the date of initial
application
e  Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

(i) Inventories

Inventories are valued as follows:

Raw materials, packing materials and stores, Lower of cost and net realizable value. However, materials and

spares and consumables other items held for use in the production of inventories are not
written down below cost if the finished products in which they will
be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is
determined on a weighted average basis. Stores and spares which
do not meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are
accounted as inventories.

Work-in-progress & finished goods including Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of Work in progress

traded goods and finished goods includes direct materials and labour and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating
capacity. Cost of traded goods includes cost of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(j) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for
publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.
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The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately
for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations
generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future
cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent
budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for
subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in
which the asset is used.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so
that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

(k) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,
for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of
any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of

time is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain tuture events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is
not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured
reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

() Retirement and other employee benefits
Defined contribution plan:

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other
than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund
scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized
as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for
services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will
lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plan:

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan
is determined using the projected unit credit method.
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Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

Past service costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss on the earlier of:
- The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
- The date that the Company recognizes related restructuring costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benetit liability or asset. The Company recognizes
the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an employee benefits expense in the statement of profit and
loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and
- Interest expense and Income

Leave Encashment / compensated absences:

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit.
The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the
unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit
for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using
the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gain/loss are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss
and are not deferred.

The Company presents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right
to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date.

(m) Share based payments

Employees of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for cash payments based on equity instruments (equity settled transactions) of the ultimate holding company.

The Company classifies a share-based payment transaction as equity settled when it receives goods or services as
consideration for its own equity instruments or receives goods or setvices but has no obligation to settle the transaction with
the supplier.

Further, it classifies a share-based payment transaction as cash settled if it acquires the goods or services by incurring a
liability to transfer cash or other assets to the supplier of those goods or services for amounts that are based on the price of
its own equity instruments or that of another group entity.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate
valuation model. The cost is recognised together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment reserves in equity or
capital contribution from parent depending on which entity is settling the transaction. The costs are recognised, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Company's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions
have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespective




MTR Foods Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied. provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied.

(n) Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
confractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured
on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

Su |}SCQ1IC nt measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

e Debt instruments at amortised cost

e Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

e Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
e  Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets,
and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI).

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value.
Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest
income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘“debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash tlows that are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amottisation is included in finance
income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally
applies to trade and other receivables. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 12.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Investments in subsidiaries and asscoiates are
recorded at cost less impairment. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by
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an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in OCI subsequent changes in the fair value. The
Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit and
loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Company has transfetred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the
Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent otthe Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment ol linancial assets

The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial
assets measured at amortised cost.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach® for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables and other
receivable. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there
has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-
month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used.
If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This
amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for
various financial instruments is described below:

s Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, trade and other receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.c., as an
integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount.
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Until the asset meets write-off criteria. the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying
amount.

s Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e. as a
liability. -

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, including payable to employees and borrowings

Subsequent measurement

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR). The effective
interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments over the expected life of the
financial liability or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified. such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no
reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which
are debl instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.
Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the
business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes
are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform
an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification
prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the
change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment
gains or losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

Oviginal Classification | Revised Classification Accounting Treatment

Amortised Cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference
between previous amortized cost and fair value is recognised in
P&L

FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying
amount. EIR is calculated based on the new gross catrying
amount

Amortised Cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Ditference

between previous amortized cost and fair value is recognised in
OCI. No change in EIR due to reclassification.

FVOCI Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new amortised cost
carrying amount. However cumulative gain or loss in OCI is
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adjusted against fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured
as if it had always been measured at amortised cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new carrying
amount. No other adjustment is required.
FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative gain or

loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to P&L at the
reclassification date.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultancously.

(o) Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive
and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit and loss,
except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified to the statement of
profit and loss when the hedge item affects the statement of profit and loss or treated as basis adjustment, if'a hedged forecast
transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

(p) Investment in Subsidiary and associate

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not in control or joint control over those policies.

The investment in subsidiary and associate are carried at cost as per IND AS 27. Investment accounted for at cost is accounted
for in accordance with IND AS 105 when they are classified as held for sale and Investment carried at cost is tested for
impairment as per IND AS 36. An investor, regardless of the nature of its involvement with an entity (the investee), shall
determine whether it is a parent by assessing whether it controls the investee. An investor controls an investee when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee. Thus, an investor controls an investee if and only if the investor has all the following;:

e power over the investee;

e exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and

o the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.

On disposal of investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to
the statement of profit and loss.

(q) Segment accounting policies

Identification of segments:

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. The Chief Operating Decision Maker is considered to be the Board of Directors which makes strategic decisions and
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.

In accordance with Ind AS 108- Operating segments, segment information has been provided in the consolidated financial
statements of the Company and therefore no separate disclosure on segment information is given in these standalone financial
statements.
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(r) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period atributable to equity shareholders
(after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such
as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed
the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

(s) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet and for the purpose of the statement of cash flows comprise cash on hand
and cash at bank including fixed deposits with original maturity period of three months

(t) Cash dividend

The Company recognises a liability to pay dividend to equity holders of the parent when the distribution is authorised and
the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised
when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

(u) Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an
asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

(v) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs

2.3 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concering the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below. The Company’s assumptions and estimates are based on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.
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(a) Decfined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 in India, which is a defined
benefit obligation. The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates.
Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in
India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds where remaining maturity ot such bond correspond
to expected term of defined benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in
response to demographic changes. The estimate of future salary increases is based on expected future inflation rates,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in note 38.
(b) Leases

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate
(IBR) to measure Iease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar
term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment.

The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is required to
make certain entity-specific estimates.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an
option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the
lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement
in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is
within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction
of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

The management while evaluating lease periods have not considered the renewal periods of real estate leases as the
management is not reasonably certain of exercising the renewal options available as on the balance sheet date. Further, the
management is reasonably certain of not exercising any termination options available as part of the contract as on the balance
sheet date for all such leases and hence have not considered them in evaluation of lease periods.

(c) Provision for sales return

The Company provides for sales return on damaged goods based on trend of previous years. The Company reviews the trend
atregular intervals to ensure the applicability of the same in the changing scenario and based on the management's assessment
of market conditions.

(d) Estimating variable consideration for discount, volume rebates and trade incentives

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received/receivable from its customers and in determining the
transaction price for the sale of products, the Company considers the effects of various factors such as volume based
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discounts, rebates and other promotion incentives schemes (‘trade schemes”) provided to the customers. At year end, amounts
for trade schemes that have been incurred and not yet provided to the customers are estimated and accrued.

In estimating the variable consideration towards discounts, volume rebates and trade incentives taking into consideration the
terms of the volume thresholds and expected likely payout based on historical experience, current trend and future
expectations of future expectations of customers meeting the thresholds.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the transaction price, the Company considers whether the amount
of variable consideration is constrained. The Company determined that the estimates of variable consideration are not
constrained based on its historical experience, business forecast and the current economic conditions. In addition, the
uncertainty on the variable consideration will be resolved within a short time frame.

(e) Provision on inventories

The Company has a defined policy for provision on inventory sub-categorised into raw materials, packing materials and
finished goods. The Company provides provision based on the policy, expired, obsolete and slow moving inventory.

() Useful life of assets considered for depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life
and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company's assets are
determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed at each financial year end. The useful lives are
based on technical advice, prior asset usage experience and the risk of technological obsolescence.

(g) Impairment allowance for doubtful debts

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts. Under Ind AS, impairment allowance has been determined based on Expected Credit
Loss (ECL) model. Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing of the receivable balance and historical
experience. Individual trade receivables are written off if the same are not collectible. Further details about impairment
allowance are given in Note 48.
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MTR Foods Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

4 Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

(4a) Right-of-use assets (ROU)

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

At the beginning of the year 2,001 2,431
Additions 520 78
Amortization (refer note 34) (501) (507)
Deletions (1n (N
Adjustments due to modification [refer note (i) below] 9 -
At the end of the year 2,018 2,001
(4b) Lease liabilities
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
At the beginning of the year 3,133 3,485
Additions 463 70
Retirements (13) -
Interest expense on lease liabilities 328 352
Lease rent concession - (29)
Payments (785) (745)
Adjustment due to modification [refer note (i) below] 8 -
Closing balance 3,134 3,133

Note :

(i) The modification/adjustment is on account of change in the lease term or change in the lease payments accordingly the lease
liability is re-measured as on date of modification and the difference between the lease liability as on date of modification and

the re-measured lease liability as per above is adjusted to the carrying amount of ROU.

Non-current
Current

The following are the amounts recognised in profit and loss ;

Gain on retirement of right-of-use assets
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets(refer note 34)

Interest expense on lease liabilities(refer note 35)
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses and Staff
welfare expense)

Expense relating to leases of low value assets (included in other expenses)
Rent concession

Also refer note 40 for other disclsoures in respect of leases.

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

2,654
480

Year ended
March 31, 2022

2,698
435

Year ended
March 31, 2021

501
328
652

50

507
352
563




MTR Foods Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in [ndian Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

5

Intangible assets

Computer
Deemed Cost sofgvare Total
At April 1, 2020 383 383
Additions 71 71
Disposals - -
At March 31, 2021 454 454
Additions 106 106
Disposals - -
At March 31, 2022 560 560
Depreciation
At April 1, 2020 155 155
Charge for the year 161 161
Disposals - &
At March 31, 2021 316 316
Charge for the year 100 100
Disposals - 2
At March 31, 2022 416 416
Net carrying value as at:
At March 31, 2021 138 138
At March 31, 2022 144 144

<This space is intentionally left blank>




MTR Foods Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

6

6(a) Investment in subsidiaries and associates

Investments

Non-Current Investments

As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

In subsidiaries: (at cost unless stated otherwise)
Unquoted equity shares:
50,000 (March 31, 2021: 50,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in Rasoi Magic Foods 2,707 2,707
(India) Private Limited [refer note (i) below]

96,560,900 (March 31, 2021: 96,56,900) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in Eastemn 1,84,416 1,84,416
Condiments Private Limited [refer note: 50]

(A) 1,87,123 1,87,123
In associates: (at cost unless stated otherwise)
Unquoted equity shares:
3,514 (March 31, 2021: 3,514) Equity shates of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in Pot Ful India Private 1,317 1,317
Limited (Goodwill on acquisition of Rs 1,105 ) [refer note (ii) below]
(B) 1,317 1,317
Total (A+B) 1,88.440 1,88.440

6(b) Other Investments: (Carried at fair value through other comprehensive income)

Unquoted equity instruments:
1,403 (March 31, 2021: 1,403) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid-up in Finnroots Private - 39
Limited [refer note (iii) below]

Total - 39

6(c) Current Investments :(at fair value through profit or loss account)

i)

iii)

Unquoted mutual funds:

Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund 5,568 1716
1,622,789 345 units (March 31, 2021 : 517,397,591 units)

ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund 5,472 1,377
1,735,406 .32 units (March 31,2021 : 451,559.058 units)

Total 11,040 3,093

Aggrepate book value of unquoted investments 1,99,480 1,91,572

Aggrepate amount of impaimment in value of investments

Note:

As at March 31, 2022, Rasoi Magic Foods (India) Private Limited {"Rasoi") has a negative net worth of Rs. 263 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 309). The Management is of the view that Rasof is
of strategic importance to the Company and there is no diminution in the value of the investment, The Company has committed to support Rasoi to fund its operations, as may be
required

On December 1, 2018, the Company had acquired 1,112 shares of Pot Ful India Private Limted (‘Pot Ful'), comprising of 10% shareholding in Pot Ful as at April 1, 2019. During the
year ended March 31, 2020, the Company acquired 252 equity shares from the promoters of Pot Ful and subscribed to 2,150 equity shares resluting in 26.5% shareholding in Pot Ful,
Effective July 15,2019 Pot Ful became an associate of the Company

On October 13, 2017, the Company had acquired 8,065 shares of Firmroots Private Limited (FPL'), comprising of 43% shareholding, at fair value of Rs. 4,340 per share. During the
year ended March 31, 2020, FPL had converted its Series A CCPS into equity shares, reducing the Company's shareholding to 33%, As at March 31, 2020, on account of continued
losses incurred by FPL, the Company had recognised an impairment loss allowance of Rs. 1,513 per share, During the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company sold 6,662 shares of
FPL at fair value of Rs. 2,627 per share, resulting into loss of Rs.200 per share. This loss is set off from the impairment allowance recognised in the year ended March 31, 2020. As at
March 31, 2021, the Company has 5 54% shareholding in FPL resulting into FPL ceasing to be an associate of the Company w e f December 24, 2020. Accordingly, investments in FPL
as at March 31, 2021 has been remeasured at fair value through OCI as per Ind AS 109. Management has assessed the fair value of the investment in FPL as at March 31, 2022
amounting to Rs. Nil (March 31, 2021 Rs. 39).




MTR Foods Private Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

7 Non current - loans (at amortised cost)

Unsecured, considered good
Loans to employees
Loans to related parties (refer note (i) below)

Sub-classification of Loans:
Loan receivables considered good- Secured
Loan receivables considered good- Unsecured

Loan receivables which have significant increase in credit risk

Loan receivables - credit impaired

i) Loans to related parties comprise of the following:
a) PotFul India Private Limited (Associate)
Maximum amount outstanding during the year

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

The Company has given a loan to Pot Ful India Private Limited for its principal business activities. One of the promoter director of the associate pledged his equity shares as security

The loan is repayable in September 2024 at an interest rate of 7% per annum.

Other non current financial assets

oo

Security deposits for leased premises
Other deposits

9 Other non-current assets

Capital advances

Prepaid expenses

1

(=]

Deferred tax assets /(liability)[net]

Deferred tax assets /(liability)[net]

Deferred tax relates to the following

Property, plant and equipment: Difference in written down value as per Companies Act, 2013 and as per

Income tax Act for the financial reporting period

Employee retirement benefit expenditure and bonus payable charged to the statement of profit and loss
account but allowed for tax purposes on payment basis

Impact of Ind AS-116 ROU assets & lease liabilities
Other expenses allowable in tax on payment basis
Net deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets (net)

Balance at the beginning of the year

Tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in profit or loss
Tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in OCI

Balance at the end of the year

42 54
500 -
542 54
542 54
542 54
500
500
As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
334 265
264 226
598 491
As at As at
March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
17 90
44
17 134
As at As at
March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
851 698
851 698
Standalone Balance sheet Standalone statement of Profit and
loss and OCI
As at Asat Year ended Year ended
March 31,2022 March 31,2021) March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
(254) (345) 1) (126)
372 375 3 (28)
315 285 (30) (20)
418 383 (35) 15)
851 698 (153) (189)
As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

698 509
173 180
(20) 9
351 698




MTR Foods Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

11 Inventories

At lower of cost and net realisable value

Raw materials (includes Goods-in-transit Rs. Nil (March 31, 2021: Rs, 125))
Packing materials

Work-in-progress

Finished goods

Traded goods

Stores, spares and consumables

As at
Mareh 31,2022

As at
Mareh 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2022 Rs. 238 (March 31, 2021; Rs. 182) was recognised as provision towards slow moving inventories

12 Trade receivables

Trade receivables include:

2,897 2,659
978 1,280
442 250

3918 3,736
788 509
606 566

9,629 9,000

As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Receivable from related parties (refer note 45) 16 58
Receivable from others 2,479 1,728
2,495 1,786
Break-up for security details:
Secured, considered good - -
Unsecured , considered good 2,414 1,786
Trade Receivables, which have significant increase credit risk - =
Trade Receivables, credit impaired 81 90
2,495 1,876
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (81) (90)
2,414 1,786
Trade receivables Ageing Schedule
As at March 31, 2022 Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment
Currentbut | Lessthan 6 6 months - 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
not due Months year years
Undisputed trade 1eceivables — considered good 2,075 329 5 5 - = 2,414
Undisputed trade receivables - which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
Undisputed trade receivable - credit impaired - - - 10 3] 4 17
Disputed trade receivables - considered good - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables - which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - ) ) -
Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - - 64 64
Total 2,075 329 5 15 3 68 2,495
As at March 31, 2021 N but Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment
urrent bu Less than 6 6 months -1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
not due
Months year years
Undisputed trade receivables — considered good 1,399 387 - - - - 1,786
Undisputed trade recervables - which have signiticant
increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
Undisputed trade receivable - credit impaired - 3 9 8 4 2 26
Disputed trade receivables - considered good - - = - = 5 -
Disputed trade receivables - which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - - - :
Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - 64 - 64
Total 1,399 390 9 8 68 2 1,876




MTR Foods Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

No trade or other receivable is due from directots or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other petson

For terms and condition relating to related party teceivables, refer note 45

Trade receivables are generally non-interest bearing and aie on tenns of 7 to 30 days, except for export sales which are generally on terms of 30-60 days, however the same vary from for
each customer on basis of agreed terms. They are recognised at their original invoice amount which represent their fair value on initial recognition

13 Current financial assets- Loans
As at As at
March 31,2022  March 31,2021

Loans to employees 204 167
Loans to related parties (refer note (i) below) 550 -
754 167

Sub-classification of Loans:

Loan receivables considered good- Secured
Loan receivables considered good- Unsecured 754 167
Loan receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Loan receivables - credit impaired

754 167

i) Loans to related parties comprise of the following:
a) Rasoi Magic Foods (India) Private Limited (Subsidiary) 550 .
Maximum amount outstanding during the year 600 .

The Company had granted an unsecured loan facility to Rasoi Magic Foods (India) Private Limited at the interest rate prevailing for one year Government securities, for its principal
business activities. The said loan is repayable on demand, details as follows:

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Type of Borrower Amount of loan Percentage to the] Amountofloan Percentage to the

or advance in the  total Loans and|or advance in the  total Loans and
nature of loan  Advances in the nature of loan  Advances in the

outstanding  nature of loans outstanding nature of loans
Loan to related parties (Subsidiary} 550 42% - 0%
Total 550 -
14 Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Balances with banks:

On current accounts 222 764
Cash on hand 2 2
224 766

15 Bank balances other than above
As at As at
March 31,2022  March 31, 2021

Bank deposits (with original maturity of more than 3 months and having remaining maturity of less than 12 months) - 1,000
= 1,000

<This space is intentionally left blank>




MTR Foods Private Limited
Notes to Standalonc financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Details of non-cash transactions from investing activities and changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Non-cash changes

As a;(:;\ZI;nI 1, Cash flows (net) Fe}ir e e As at ;?);;Ch 31,
niljustments
Investing activities
Non-current investments (also refer note: 50) 1,88,479 - 39 - 1,88,440
Current investments 3.093 7.750 48 149 11.040
Total 1,91,572 7,750 9 149 1,99.480
Financing activities
Current borrowings 1,000 1,500 - - 2,500
Lease liabilities 3,133 (785) - 786 3,134
Total 4,133 715 - 786 5,634

As at April 1,

Non-cash changes

As at March 31,

2020 Adjustment Cash flows (net) Fair Value Others 2021
adj 15
Investing activities
Non-current investiments (also refer note: 50) 4,252 1,27,263 (14) 56,978 1,88,479
Current investments 6,676 (4,100) 3 514 3,093
Total 10,928 1,23,163 (11) 57,492 1,91,572
Financing activities
Current borrowings 350 650 - - 1,000
Lease liabilities 3,485 (745) - 393 3,133
Total 3,835 95 = 393 4,133
16 Current financial assets-Others
As at As at
Mareh 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Security deposits for leased premises 98 70
Other receivables 378 102
Interest accrued on fixed deposits - 16
Derivative assets (refer below note) 13 8
489 196
Except for a mark to market gain above , all financial assets are carried at amortised cost,
17 Other current assets
As at As at
March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid expenses 273 225
Balances with statutory/ government authorities
Unsecured, considered good 561 983
Unsecured, considered doubtful 150 -
711 983
Less: provision for doubtful balances (150) -
561 983
Advances recoverable in kind**
Unsecured, considered good 686 339
Unsecured, considered doubtful 18 18
704 357
Less: provision for doubtful advances (18) (18)
686 339
Export incentive receivables 256 104
Property, plant and equipment held for sale - )
1,776 1,651

**Includes advances given to suppliers against purchase of raw materials and advances to employees against future services

*Rounded off to the nearest lakhs
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MTR Foods Private Limited
Notes to the Standalonc financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

20

21

22

23

Government grants

Grant received for capital assets under Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) scheme (refer
note 44b)

Movement in liability is as follows:

Opening balance

Received during the year

Released to the statement of profit and loss
Refunded

Closing balance

Current
Non-current

Other non-current liabilities

Interest on Government grants (refer note 44b)

Borrowings

Short term loan from Bank (Unsecured) [refer note (i) below]

Details of security and terms of repayment

As at As at

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
107 107
107 107

As at As at

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
107 117

(10)

107 107

107 107

As at As at

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
93 74

93 74

As at As at

Mareh 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

2,500

1,000

2,500

1,000

i) The Company has taken a short term loan of Rs. 2,500 (March 31, 2021 : Rs. 1,000 ) for a duration of less than 1 year and carrying at floating interest

rate range between 3.16% to 3.43% (March 31,2021 : 3.02% to 3.53% per annum).

Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (refer note below)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises*

* Includes payable to related parties (refer note 45)
* Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 to 60 day terms.

As at

As at

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

748 1,183
6,357 7,889
7,105 9,072
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Trade Payable Ageing Schedule

As at March 31, 2022 Unbilled | Current but not

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Total

Less than 1
vear

due 1-2 years

2-3 years  More than 3 years

Total outstanding dues of micro 35 702 5

enterprises and small enterprises

Total outstanding dues of 4,671 1,394 255
creditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises

Disputed dues of micro - B
enterprises and small enterprises

Disputed dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small
enterprises

1 E 748

24

Total 4,706 2,096 260 11

24 7,105

As at Mareh 31, 2021 Unbilled

Current but not Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Total

due Less than1 1-2 years

year

2-3 years  More than 3 years

Total outstanding dues of micro 119 1,001 62

enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of 6,012 1,616 226
creditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises

Disputed dues of micro - . - -
enterprises and small enterprises

Disputed dues of creditors other -
than micro enterprises and small
enterprises

1,183

23 7,889

Total 6,131 2,617 288

23 9,072

Details of Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end
of each accounting year

@

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises**
Interest due on above

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along
with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year

(i)

Principal
Interest

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under the MSMED Act, 2006.

(iif)

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.

(iv)
(v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose
of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006.

As at
March 31,2022

As at
March 31, 2021

851 1,275

236 844

The above disclosures are provided by the Company based on the information available with the Company in respect of the registration status of its

vendors/suppliers

> = Rounded 6t nearest lakhs

o Yo\

\

§

7 N &clﬁd'c_s vable towards capital creditors as on March 31, 2022 to the extent of Rs. 103 (March 31, 2021: Rs.92)
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24 Other financial liabilities

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

24(a) Other non current financial liabilities

Liability on account of investment in subsidiary (refer note: 50) 29,619
Payable to employees 354 .
354 29,619
24(b) Other current financial liabilities
Payable to employees 1,537 2,367
Payable for purchase of capital goods* 194 195
Deposits from suppliers 44 44
Refund liabilities (refer note 28 (d)) 650 361
Liability on account of investment in subsidiary(refer note: 50) 32,106 360
34,531 3,327
*Includes outstanding dues to micro & small enterprises of Rs, 103 (March 31,2021 : Rs 92)
25 Other current liabilities
As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Statutory dues payable * 469 368
Payable towards CSR expenditure 93 103
Contract liabilities (advance from customers) (refer note 28(c)) 633 699
1,195 1,170
* Includes dues towards provident fund, employee state insurance dues, profession tax, withholding taxes and goods and services tax
26 Provisions
As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Employee benefit obligation:
Provision for gratuity (refer note 38) 22 157
Provision for compensated absences 536 573
Other provisions (refer note 41(i})) 1,142 1,142
Total 1,700 1,872
27 Current tax liabilities (net)
As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Income tax liabilities (net of advance tax) 151 230
151 230

<This space is intentionally left blank>
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28 Revenue from operations

Sale of products (A)

Other operating revenue:

Scrap sales
Export incentives
Others
(B)
Total revenue from operations (A+B)

Year ended

March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

(a) Disclosure of disaggregated revenue recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss basced on geographical segment:

Revenue from customers within India
Revenue from customers outside India
Revenue as per the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss

(b

~—

Timing of revenue recognition

Goods transferred at a point in time
Goods transferred over time

Contract balances

(c

~—

Contract assets - Trade receivables (refer note 12)
Conltract liabilities - Advance from customers (refer note 25)

97,099 94,772
131 121
256 104
3 21
390 246
97,489 95,018
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
86,872 86,191
10,617 8,827
97,489 95,018
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
97,099 94,772
97,099 94,772
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
2,414 1,786
633 699

Trade receivables are generally non-interest bearing and are on terms of 7 to 30 days, except for export sales which are generally on terms of 30-
60 days, however the same vary from for each customer on basis of agreed terms. They are recognised at their original invoice amount which

represent their fair value on initial recognition.

In March 2022 , Rs. (9) (March 2021: Rs. 6) was recognised as provision/(reversal) of expected credit loss on contract assets.

(d) Refund liabilities :

Refund liabilities ( Refer note 24(b) )

(e) Reconciliation of revenue as recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss with the contracted price:

Revenue as per contracted price

Less:

Sales return

Discounts and volume rebates

Revenue as per the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
650 361
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1,04,884 99,961
(2,005) (985)
(5,390) (3,958)
97,489 95,018
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29 Other income

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
Interest income
Loan to subsidiary company 16 !
Loan to associates 18 -
Bank deposit 87 54
Others - 5
Unwinding of security deposit 26 21
Gain on termination/modification of right-of-use assets 1 -
Gain on sale of Property, plant and equipment 4 15
Profit on sale of investments in units of mutual funds 149 514
Write back of Expected credit loss 9 -
Fair value gain on financial instruments at FVTPL 52 10
Lease rent concession(refer note 4b) - 29
Gain on foreign exchange fluctuations 175 78
Liabilities no longer required written back 34 50
Other non-operating income 65 93
636 870

<This space is intentionally left blank>
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30 Cost of raw material and packing materials consumed

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
a) Raw materials
Inventory at the beginning of the year 2,659 2,224
Add: Purchases (net) 37,974 36,911
40,633 39,135
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 2,897 2,659
37,736 36,476
b) Packing materials
Inventory at the beginning of the year 1,280 655
Add: Purchases (net) 5,461 5,561
6,741 6,216
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 978 1,280
5,763 4,936
Total (a+b) 43,499 41,412
31 Purchase of stock-in-trade
Purchase of stock-in-trade 8,204 7,154
8.204 7,154
32 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Traded goods 509 420
Work in progress 250 312
Finished goods 3,736 3,024
4,495 3,756
Inventories at the end of the year
Traded goods 788 509
Work in progress 442 250
Finished goods 3,918 3,736
5,148 4,495
Decrease/ (increase) in inventories (653) (739)
33 Employee benefits expense
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Salaries, wages and bonus 9,790 9,950
Contribution to provident and other funds(refer note 38) 418 396
Gratuity expense (refer note 38) 158 149
Staff welfare expenses 1,176 1,114
Share based payment (refer note 42) 91 85
11,633 11,694
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34

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Depreciation of Property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 2,338 2,398
Amortisation of Intangible assets (refer note 5) 100 161
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (refer note 4) 501 507
2,939 3,066
35 Finance costs
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Interest expense on borrowings 33 32
Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer note 4b) 328 352
Unwinding of discount 2,128 -
2,489 384

Bank charges 75 63
Interest on income tax 16 18
91 81

2,580 465
Year ended Year ended
36 Other expenses March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Consumption of stores and spares 419 451
Power and fuel 1,314 1,159
Processing & water charges 294 313

Repairs and maintenance

Plant and machinery 406 618
Buildings 86 202
Others 962 859
Rent (refer note 40) 173 79
Provision for balances with government authorities 150 -
Rates and taxes 102 226
Insurance 174 133
Communication costs 31 27
Travelling and conveyance 375 172
Legal and professional fees 1,079 1,369
Payments to auditors [refer note (i) below] 94 94
Advertising and sales promotion 6,987 6,812
Freight and forwarding charges 3,688 2,725
Sales commission 734 612
Provision for doubtful debts and advances - 6
Loss on Assets held for sale - 18
Advance Written off - 5
Assets written off/Scrapping - 3
CSR expenses [refer note (39)] 233 183
Miscellaneous expenses 860 721
18,161 16,787
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Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Note (i): Payment to auditors :
As auditor:
Audit fee 72 87
In other capacity:
Other services 22 7
94 94
37 Income tax expense
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current income tax charge 3,766 4,309
Deferred tax credit (173) (180)
Total 3,593 4,129
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 30 6)
Fair value gains/ (losses) on equity instruments (10) 3)
Total charge/(credit) 20 (9

Reconciliation of tax (income)/ expense and the accounting profit/ (loss) multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate:

Accounting profit/ (loss) before income tax
Tax expense/(credit) at India’s statutory income tax rate of 25.168%

Tax effect of:
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes
Others

Total

<This space is intentionally left blank>

11,762 16,049
2,960 4,039
626 85

7 5
3,593 4,129
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38 Employee benefit obligation

A. Defined contribution plans

The Company makes contribution determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards provident fund which is a
defined contribution plan. For provident fund, the Company has an obligation under law to make the specified contribution and the contribution are charged to profit
and loss account. The amount recognised as an expense towards contribution to the provident fund during the year aggregated to Rs.418 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 396)

Amount recoghnised as an expense and included in Note - 33 as “Contribution

to provident and other funds"

Contribution to Government Provident Fund
Contribution to Employee State Insurance (ESI)

Total
B. Defined benefit plans

1. Gratuity

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
417 395
| 1
418 396

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has completed atleast five years or more of service gets a gratuity on
departure at 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded with an insurance company in the form of qualifying insurance

policy

The following table summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts recognised

in the balance sheet.

Net defined benefit obligation (DBO)

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

a. Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability/(asset)
(i) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

Opening defined benefit obligation

Current service cost

Net interest cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial (gain)/ losses recognised in other comprehensive income
- changes in demographic assumptions
- changes in financial assumptions
- experience adjustments

Closing defined benefit obligation

(ii) Reconciliation of present value of plan assets

Balance at the beginning of the year
Employer's Contribution

Benefits paid

Expected return

Actuarial gains / (losses)

Balance at the end of the year

<This space is intentionally left blank>

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(2,159) (2,066)

2,137 1.907

22) (159)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
2,066 1,790

149 138

133 123

(85) 7

(20) F

3 71
(87) (39)

2,159 2,066

1,907 1,633

177 173
(85) a7

124 112

14 6

2,137 1,907
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b. Net benefit expense

(i) Recognised in profit or loss
Current service cost
Interest cost (net)

(ii) Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial loss/(gain) on defined benefit obligation
- changes in demographic assumptions
- changes in financial assumptions
- experience adjustments
Return on plan assets (greater) / less than discount rate

C. Plan assets

Plan assets comprise of the following:

Investments with insurer in Life Insurance Corporation of India

The Company expects to contribute Rs 179 (March 31, 2021: Rs 308) to gratuity fund in the ensuing year

D. i. Actuarial assumptions

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company's plans are shown below:

Discount rate
Salary escalation rate
Attrition
Upto 45 Years
Above 45 years
Retirement age

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
149 138

9 11

158 149

(20) =

3 71
(87) (39)
a4 )

(118) 26
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
100% 100%
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
6.95% 6.50%
8 50% 8.00%
7.00% 7.00%
5.00% 3.00%
60 Years 60 Years

As at March 31, 2022, the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 9 years (March 31, 2021: 10 years)

ii. Sensitivity Analysiy

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined

obligation [(reduction)/increase] by the amount shown below:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (+1/-1% movement) -8.30% 9.50% -9.40% 10.90%
Increase/(Decrease) in DBO (179) 206 (194) 225
Future salary growth (+1/-1% movement) 8.60% -7.90% 10.00% -8,90%
Increase/(Decrease) in DBO 186 (170) 206 (184)
Attrition rate (+50/-50% movement) -2.00% 2.70% -2.10% 2.70%
Increase/(Decrease) in DBO (44) 59 (42) 55
iii. Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation
As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted basis):
1 year 158 102
2 to 5 years 750 595
Beyond 5 years 3,613 3,774
Total expected payments 4,521 4,471




MTR Foods Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

39 As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) committee has been formed by the Company. The Company has
incurred expenditure on activities which are specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013, as below:-

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

a) Gross amount to be required to be spent by the Company during the year 229 177

b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 233 183

March 31, 2022 In Cash Yet to be Paid in cash Total

i) Construction/Aquistion of any asset - - -

ii) On purpose other than (i) above 180 E 180

March 31, 2021 In Cash Yet to be Paid in cash Total

i) Construction/Aquistion of any asset B - -
80 - 80

ii) On purpose other than (i) above

Details related to spent/ unspent obligations:

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
i) Contribution to Pubilc Trust . -
ii) Contribution to Charitable Trust 125 25
iii) Directly spent by the Company 55 55
iv) Unspent amount in relation to
- Ongoing project 53 103
- Other than Ongoing project - -
Total 233 183

In case of Section 135(6) Ongoing project

Opening Balance as on April 01, 2021

Amount Required
to be spent during

Amount spent during the year

Closing Balance as on March 31,2022

the year
With Company In Separate CSR Unspent From From Separate | From Company's Bank A/c|From Separate CSR
Alc Company's CSR Unspent Unspent A/c
Bank A/c Alc
103 - 233 180 63 53 40

In case of Section 135(6) Ongoing project

Opening Balance as on April 01, 2020

Amount Required
to be spent during

Amount spent during the year

Closing Balance as on March 31, 2021

the year
With Company In Separate CSR Unspent From From Separate | From Company's Bank A/c|From Separate CSR
Alc Company's CSR Unspent Unspent A/c
Bank A/c Alc
- - 177 80 - 103 -

As per Sec 135(6) of Companies Act, 2013, the Company had transferred unspent CSR amount of Rs. 53 relating to ongoing project to a separate unspent CSR
account on September 27, 2022 and for the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has transferred unspent CSR amount of Rs. 103 relating to ongoing project to a
separate unspent CSR account before 30 days from end of financial year

<This space is intentionally left blank>
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40

a)

Commitments and Contingencies

Leascs

Lease commitments as lessee

The Company has lease contracts for various office/ store premises and warehouse facilities. The lease term is for a period ranging from 2 to 11 years. The
agreements contain fixed rentals with escalation clause in the lease agreements. Certain lease agreements have renewal option at the mutual agreement of the
lessee and lessor. The agreements contain options to terminate the leases after giving a specified notice period to the other party. Accordingly, the Company
has considered the initial term of agreement as lease term under Ind AS 116.

The Company also has lease of premises with lease terms of 12 months or less and lease of premises with low value. The Company applies the ‘short-term
lease’ and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions for these leases.

Year ended Year ended
The below table provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on undiscounted basis : March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Within one year 812 749
After one year but not more than five year 2,711 2,347
More than five years 905 1,425
Total 4,428 4,521
Total cash outflow for leases for the year ended March 31, 2022 is Rs.1,487 (March 31, 2021: Rs.1,350).
Lease commitments for leases not considered in measurement of lease liabilities: Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Lease commitment for short-term leases 55 53
Lease commitment for leases of low value assets 3 -
Total 58 53
b) Other commitments
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided 225 434
for, net of advances.
b) As at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, the Company has committed to provide financial support to Rasoi Magic Foods (India) Private Limited with
regard to operations of the subsidiary.
41 Contingent liabilities
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
A Contingent liabilities:
(a) Litigations
.. Indirect taxation (includes matters pertaining to disputes on central excise, service tax, value 204 204
M added taxes and central sales tax.) [refer note (ii) below]
(ii) Other litigations [refer note (iii) below] 158 158
Notes :
(i) In the prior years, the Company had received claims from the VAT authorities for payment of higher VAT for certain products. Accordingly, as a matter of
prudence, the Company had made a provision amounting to Rs. 1,142 in its books of account towards such differential taxes. As at March 31, 2022 and March
31, 2021, the Company carries a provision of Rs. 1,142 in this regard. In the year ended March 31, 2013, the Honourable High Court of Karnataka had
adjudicated the matter in favour of the Company. The KVAT authorities have filed a Special Leave Petition (SLP) in the Supreme Court which has been
admitted by the Supreme Court. Accordingly, management continues to carry the provision as a matter of prudence pending final adjudication of the matter of
law before the Supreme Court.
(ii) The disputes above include dispute relating to concessional rate of excise duty availed by the Company on manufacture and sale of certain products.. The

Company is contesting the demands and the management, including its tax advisors, believe that its position will likely be upheld in the appellate process. No
expense has been accrued in the financial statements for the demand raised. The management believes that the ultimate outcome of this proceeding will not
have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position and results of operations.

In respect of other matters the Company is contesting the demands in respect of various years and the management, including its tax advisors, believes that its
position will likely be upheld at various forums where the matters are pending. No expense has been accrued in the financial statements for the demand raised.
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(iii) Other litigations include Rs. 158 (March 31, 2021 : Rs 158) being penalty and charges claimed by Bangalore Electricity Supply Company Limited
(BESCOM) alleging unauthorised extension of power supply. The Company is confident that the claims are not tenable and the Company is in full compliance

of the rules.

(b) Bank guarantees
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Guarantees given by banks on behalf of the Company for contractual

e 189 189
obligations of the Company.
Guarantees given by the Company to the banks on behalf of its suppliers 1,270 -
The necessary terms and conditions have been complied with and no liabilities have arisen. The Company has given commitments of Rs. 1,270 (March 31,
2021: NIL) to purchase raw materials from certain vendors in the normal course of its business.

<This space is intentionally left blank>
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Share based payments

The ultimate holding company ("Orkla ASA") of the Company operales equity incentive compensalion programs which include long term incentive plan for executive management and the Employee
Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”) for employees

Under these plans, Orkla ASA, the ultimale holding company of the Company has granted equity shares which are seltled in cash for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute (o the success of the Company’s operalion All awards granted to employees (including directors) are subject to approval in advance by the board of directors of Orkla ASA
Sharc-based payments are considered as equily setlled transactions as the Company has no obligation to settle the share based payment transaction

Tn 2020, Orkla introduced a long-term incenlive programme (LT] programme) based on share options, as a replacement for the previous cash-based LTI programme  Options will be allocaled under this
programme once a year, and the first allocation was made in June 2021

Emiployee stock purchase plan (ESPP)

The ESPP permits eligible employees to acquire shares of the Orkla common stock at a 25% discount (as determined in the ESPP) through periodic payroll deductions over 12 months The purchase
price for the ultimate Company’s common stock under the ESPP is 75% of the fair market value of the shares on the date defined in the scheme document during the offer period The ESPP will be in
force only during the offer period mentioned in the scheme document Eligible employees can place orders for shares in one of the (hree lots as defined by the scheme The lock-in period for the shares
purchased through ESPP is 3 years The lock-in will apply even if an employee resigns before the lock-in expires

Considering the number of employees participating in the scheme and the amount involved is not material, no further disclosure is made

Long Term Incentive (LTI1) Scheme - Cash settled

Certain employees of the Company are granted LT1 Participants in the LTI programme are nominated on a yearly basis and awards are made for one year at a lime subject to the approval of the
President and CEO of Orkla ASA During the year ended March 31, 2021 the LTI vests over a period of four years from the date of grant, and the vesting generally occurs at a rate of 34% afler 24
months, 33% after 36 months and 33% after 48 months from the date of grant

Orkla determines the fair value of LTI based on the closing market price of the common stock on the date of grant The amount awarded is adjusled in accordance with the Orkla ASA share price
performance until it is paid out The exercise price for LTI is Nil

The expense recognised for employee services received during the year is shown in the following table Year ended Year ended
March 31,2022 March 31,2021

Expense arising from equity-seltled share-based payment transactions 91 85

Total 91 85

The following LTIs as granted to the Company’s employees, were outstanding during the year:

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Number of Shares
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 281,163 1,67,187
LTls granted during the year - 1,13,976
LTIs vested during the year (1,67,187) -

LTIs forfeited during the year

Adjustments (if any)

LTIs transferred during the year (net) if any - -
Outstanding at the ending of the year 1,13,976 2,81,163

The weighted average fair value of LTI at grant date (Rs.) 98 95

Long Term Incentive (LT1) Scheme - Share option

The yearly allocation will be based on the share price on the day after the Annual General Meeling. Of the total options allocated for the year, 20% may be exercised after one year (tranche 1), another
20% after two years (tranche 2) and the remaining 60% after three years (tranche 3). The last date on which they may be exercised is five years after the allocation date. The exercise price will be set at
the market price at the allocation date with an increase of 3% per year in the vesting period. The exercise price will be adjusted for dividends. In the event of the employee’s resignation, all options that
have not been exercised will expire

The following LTIs as granted to the Company’s employees, were outstanding during the year:

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Number of shares WAEP Number of sharves WAEP

Clutstanding option at the beginning of the year - - E: z
Granted during the year 74,429 66152

Vesled during the year . - . -
Forfeited during the year - - = -
Outstanding option at the ending of the year 74,429 661,52 - -
Exercisable at March 31 J - - - -

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at March 31, 2022 was 4 04 years (March 31, 2021: Nil)
The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was Rs, 92 69 (March 31, 2021: Rs Nil)
The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was Rs 90 02 to Rs 98 18 (March 31, 2021: Rs Nil}

The option value is calculated using the Black-Scholes model The table below shows the assumptions on which Ihe calculation is based The exercise price at the exercise date must be adjusted for
dividends paid out up to the exercise date

31-Mar-22
Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3
Number of Options 74,429 74,429 74,429
Dividend yield (%) 3.66% 3.66% 3.66%
Expected volatility (%) 23.06% 22 56% 21 66%
Risk—free interest rate (%) 6 50% 7.20% 8.00%
Expected life of share options (years) 300 350 400
Exercise price at allocation 704 90 704 90 704 .90
Exercise price at first possible exercise date 648 72 657 56 667,19

Segment Reporting

In accordance with Ind AS 108- Operating segments, segment infermay

)¢ consolidated financial statements of the Company and therefore no separale disclusure on segment
informalion is given in these standalone financial statements [/ \




MTR Foods Private Limited
Notes to Standalone linancial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(All Amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs except share data and per share data, unless stated otherwise)

44 Government grant
The Company has been awarded two government grants

(a) The Company has accounted Rs 91 as capital subsidy, during the year ended March 31, 2014, received from the Spice Board under Export Development and Promotion of Spices - "Infrastructure
Development" Scheme in respect of the investment in Property, plant and equipment made in (he Spices division and this has been disclosed as 'Deferred government grant' in the Balance Sheet The
Company has recognised income amounting to Rs NIL (March 31, 2021 : Rs 10) in proportion to the depreciation charged during the year on the related assets

b) During the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company had availed EPCG license benefit of Rs 107 against import of capital goods amounting to Rs 1,331 for manufacturing of confectionery In
respect of this benefit, the Company has an export obligation of 6 times of the duly saved on import of capital goods on FOB basis within a period of 6 years from the date of issue of the license The
export obligation is Rs 641 if the Company fails to achieve the export obligation, the Company is liable to pay duty exemption availed with an interest of 18% per annum proportionately to the extent
of obligation not mel

The duly saved on capital goods imported under EPCG scheme being Government Grant, is accounted as stated in the Accounting policy on Government Grant The Government Grant shown in note 19
represents unamortised amount of the duty saved

During the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company had assessed that it will not be able to meet any export obligations under the said license, and hence the Company would be liable to refund the
above benefit amount, along with interest @ 18% p.a. The Company has accrued interest in its books since the date of availing such benefit amounting to Rs. 93 (March 31, 2021: Rs 74)

<This space is intentionally lefl blank>
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45 Related Party Transactions

A. Name of the related party and relationship

Description of relationship

() Entities over which the Company has
significant influence:

(d) Key managerial personnel (KMP):

(a) Entities who have control over the Company

(1) Entities over which the Company has control

Name of the related parties
Orkla ASA, Oslo, Norway
Orkla Asia Pacific Pte Ltd, Singapore

Rasoi Magic Foods (India) Private Limited
Eastern Condiments Private Limited

Firmroots Private Limited
PotFul India Private Limited
Mr. Sanjay Sharma

Mr. Ganesh Shenoy
Mr. Aneesh K

Relationship/Designation
Ultimate holding company
Holding company

Subsidiary
Subsidiary (From March 31, 2021)

Associate (upto December 24, 2020)
Associate
Director & Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer
Company Sccretary

B. Transactions with related parties and outstanding balances at the end of the period

Nature of transaction
i) Transactions during the year :

Holding and Ultimate Holding companies:
Orkla Asia Pacific Pte Ltd

Reimbursement of expenses from related parties

Issue of equity shares
* Rounded off to nearest lakhs
Orkla ASA

Receipt of services
Reimbursement of expenses to related parties

Reimbursement of expenses from related parties

Share based payments

Fellow Subsidiaries:
Orkla IT AS
Reimbursement of expenses to related parties

Jordan Asia Pacific SDN. BHD.
Purchase of traded goods

Lilleborg AS
Purchase of traded goods

Subsidiary:

Rasoi Magic Foods (India) Private Limited
Other income

Purchase of traded goods

Receipt of services

Reimbursement of expenses from related parties

Patent fees
Interest on loan
Eastern Condiments Private Limited

Sale of goods and packing materials
Purchase of traded goods

Reimbursement of expenses from related parties

Associate:

Firmroots Private Limited
Advance written off
Interest on loan

Interest on loan written off

Pot Ful India Private Limited
Interest on loan

For the year ended
March 31,2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

269
108

41

47

339

35
132
35

16

109

621
494

1,11,378

297
20
119
85

36

21

34
110
35

101

11
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ii) Balances outstanding as at year end :

Amounts reccivable from :

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Orkla ASA 41 42
Rasoi Magic Foods (India) Private Limited 30 16
Eastern Condiments Private Limited (include Trade receviable of Rs. 16 (March 31, 2021:Nil) 256
Firmroots Private Limited
Outstanding amount 101
Less: written off (1on
Net balance =
Amounts payable to :
Orkla ASA 41 132
Orkla IT AS 1 -
Jordan Asia Pacific SDN. BHD 158 -
Rasoi Magic Foods (India) Private Limited 27 8

Eastern Condiments Private Limited

b. Loans given and repayment thercof

111

Particulars Opening Balance Loans Given| Repayment Loan outstanding Interest Receivable
i) Wholly Owned Subsidiary
Rasoi Magic Foods (India) Private Limited
March 31, 2022 - 600 (50) 550 5
March 31, 2021 50 850 (900) - -k
ii) Associates
Pot Ful India Private Limited
March 31, 2022 500 500 9
March 31, 2021 - -
Firmroots Private Limited
March 31, 2022 - - -
March 31, 2021 75 (75)
*Rounded off to nearest lakhs
c. Compensation to key managerial personnel
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Short-term employee benefits* 993 742
Post-employment benefits (4) 5
Total compensation paid to key managerial personnel ** 989 747

**The amounts disclosed in the above table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the reporting period related to key managerial personnel and does not
include share based payment expense

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

(a) The Company had granted an unsecured loan facility to Rasoi Magic Foods (India) Private Limited at the interest rate prevailing for Government securities, for its
principal business activities, The Company has given a commitment of financial assistance to its wholly owned subsidiary. The said loan was repayable on demand.
The Company has committed to provide support to fund the operations of Rasoi Magic Foods (India) Private Limited.

(b) The Company had granted a secured loan facility to Firmroots Private Limited ("FPL") at the interest rate prevailing for Government securities, for its principal
business activities. The said loan was repayable by June 2020. The Company after a complete review of the financial performance of FPL decided to enter into a
settlement agreement to realize a portion of the investment and its loans fully. However the interest thereon amounting to Rs,11 has been waived by the Board of
Directors of the Company considering the financial performance of FPL and the overall settlement of the loans and sale of the investments in March 2021

(c) The Company had granted a unsecured loan facility to Pot Ful India Private limited ("Pot Ful") at the interest rate of 7% p.a, for its principal business activities.
The said loan is repayable by September 2024 and interest rests quarterly

(d) The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Amount owed to and by related
party are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables
The Company has recorded impairment of receivables owed by related parties amounting to Rs. Nil (March 31, 2021: Rs, 101). This assessment is undertaken each
financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates
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Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities.

Particulars As atl As al
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments in unquoted equity shares (measured through other comprehensive income) » - 39
Investments in units of mutual funds (measured through profit and loss) # 11,040 3,093
Derivative assets ## 13 8
Total (A) 11,053 3,140
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Loans 1,296 222
Trade receivables* 2,414 1,786
Cash and cash equivalents* 224 766
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents* - 1,000
Other financial assets* 1.074 678
Total (B) 5,008 4,452
Total financial assets (A+B) 16,061 7.592
Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Lease liabilities » 3,134 3,133
Short-term borrowings* 2,500 1,000
Trade payables* 7,105 9,072
Other financial liabilities * 34,885 32,946
Total financial liabilities 47,624 46,151

*The management assessed that fair value of cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables, short-term borrowings
and other current financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. The fair
value of these financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instruments could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties other than in a forced or liquidation sale

~ The fair values of these accounts were calculated based on cash flow discounted using a current lending/ borrowing rate and other relevant assumptions,
they are classified as level 3 of fair value hierarchy due to inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risk and market factors.

# Investments in mutual funds are based on the net asset value as published by the funds, hence they are classified as level 1 of fair value hierarchy.

## Derivative assets (Forward contracts) : Fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates as provided by
banks to the Company, hence they are classified as level 1 of fair value hierarchy.

There have been no transfers among level 1, level 2 and level 3 during the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021,
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, lease liabilities, trade and other payable and other financial liabilities. The main purpose
of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations. The Company's principal financial assets include investments, loans, trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances that derive its value directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The
Company’s senior management ensures that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial
risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. There has been no change to the Company's
exposure to the financial risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risks. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks, which are summarised below:

. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument will not meet its contractual obligations under
a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
receivables) and from its investing/financing activities, including deposits with banks, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments. The
Company has 5 customers (March 31, 2021: 7 customers) that owed more than Rs.100 each and accounted for approximately 66% (March 31, 2021: 84%)
of all the receivables and contract asset outstanding,

The carrying amount of financial instruments represents the maximum exposure to credit risk.
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Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit
quality of a customer is assessed based on a credit evaluation before entering into an arrangement. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly
monitored

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivable. Under the simplified approach, the
Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from
initial recognition.

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage
by letters of credit). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. The maximum exposure to credit risk at
the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company considers
receivables from Group company to be fully recoverable and hence not subject to risk of impairment.

The Company has evaluated credit risk for customers. Any customer related specific information has been factored over and above the probability of
default (PD). The Company uses provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on its portfolio of receivables. The provision matrix takes into
account historical credit loss experience over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates/ information. The
expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due and the rates as given in the provision matrix. The provision matrix
as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are as follows:

Ageing Provision Matrix
0-90 days 0%
91-180 Days 25%
181-365 Days 50%
> | years 100%
Movement in the expected credit loss allowance As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

As at the beginning of the year 90 84
Expected credit loss provision made/ (reversed) on trade ©) 6
receivables calculated at lifetime expected credit losses

As at the end of the year 81 90

B. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or other financial assets. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of credit facilities to meet obligations when due. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The Company aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents and other highly marketable debt instruments at an amount in excess of expected
cash outflows on financial liabilities at any point of time

Exposure to liquidity risk
The table below provides the details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual
undiscounted payments.

As at March 31, 2022:

Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than S years Total
Non-derivative financial liabilities:
Lease liabilities 812 2,711 905 4,428
Borrowings 2,500 - - 2,500
Trade payables 7,105 - - 7,105
Other financial liabilities 36,227 354 - 36,581

Total non-derivative financial liabilities 46,644 3,065 905 50,614
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As at March 31, 2021:

Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than S years Total
Non-derivative financial liabilities:
Lease liabilities 749 2,347 1,425 4,521
Borrowings 1,000 - = 1,000
Trade payables 9,072 - - 9,072
Other financial liabilities 3.327 33.443 = 36,770
Total non-derivative financial liabilities 14,148 35.790 1,425 51,363

C. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices - will affect the Company's income or
the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including investments and
deposits, foreign currency receivables, payables and borrowings.

(a) Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which sales and purchases are denominated and
the functional currency (INR) of the Company. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the foreign
currency import of service and exports of finished goods . The currency in which these transactions are primarily denominated as USD, GBP, Euro and

NOK.

The Company has entered into following outstanding forward exchange contracts as on March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 in respect of highly probable

exports:
Currency As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
US Dollar (in Lakhs) 24 17
1,836 1,269

INR (in Lakhs)

Exposure to currency risk
The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabilities as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are as below:

Amount receivable / payable in foreign currency on account of| Amount in foreign currency (in Lakhs) Amount in Rupees (in Lakhs)

following: As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Receivables GBP -*¥ -*¥ 27 31
NOK 4.62 - 41 -

USD 22 14 1.691 995

Customer Advances USD - - 21 14

AUD - - - 1

Advance recoverable (including (USD - -k - 14
capital advance) EURO -* -* 23 18
GBP - 1 - 86

Trade and other payables uUsSD 2 2 158 111
NOK 4 3 41 27

AUD - -* - 3

EURO - -* - 2

*Rounded off to the nearest lakhs

Sensitivity analysis
The impact on account of any possible strengthening/ (weakening) of the INR, against all the currencies at March 31 is not expected to be material.

* Rounded off to nearest lakhs

(b) Interest-rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Company's financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Company does not have any long term debt obligations with floating interest rates, hence, is not exposed to any significant interest rate
risk.

(c) Price risk
The Company invests in mutual fund schemes of leading fund houses. Such investments are suspectible to market price risks. However, given the short
tenure of the underlying portfolio of the mutual fund schemes in which the Company has invested, such price risk is not significant.
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49 Capital management

For the purpose of Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to equity
holders of the Company. The primary objective of Company's capital management is to maintain strong credit rating and healthy capital ratio in order to
support its business and maximise the sharcholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of financial covenants.
The below displays the capital gearing ratio as at March 31,

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Net debt (total borrowings, net of cash and cash equivalents) 2,276 234
Total equity 1,87,227 1,78,947
Net debt to equity ratio 0.01 -

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aim to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached
to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements,

The Company has not defaulted on any loan obligations and there has been no breach of any loan covenants.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or process for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021,

<This space is intentionally left blank>
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50 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by divding the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into
equity shares,

The following reflects the profit and share capital data used in the basic and diluted EPS computation:

Weighted average number of Equity shares For the year For the year ended March
ended March 31, 31. 2021
2022 ’
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 1,23,30,269 98,09,269
Equity shares issued - 41,441
Equity shares to be issued upon conversion of ROCPS 6,11,128 -
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,29,41,397 98,50,710
endeﬁol\rlzl;ililgzllt For the year ended March
2022 31,2021
Profit attributable to the equity shareholders 8,169 11,920
Basic earnings per share 63 121
Diluted earnings per share 63 121

2]
—

Investment in subsidiary

During the previous year ended, on March 16, 2021 and on March 17, 2021, the Board of Directors and sharcholders of the Company, respectively,
approved the acquisition of 67.82% stake (6,549,310 shares) in Eastern Condiments Private Limited ("ECPL") for a consideration of Rs. 127,438,
pursuant to which on March 24, 2021, the Company executed Share Purchase Agreements (‘SPA’) with shareholders of ECPL. On March 31, 2021,
the Company completed the acquisition of the aforesaid 67.82% stake and ECPL became a subsidiary of the Company as of March 31, 2021. ECPL is
in the business of manufacture, distribution, marketing and sale of straight spice powder, blended spice powders, pickles, rice powders and other rice-
based products and ready to cook and ready to eat range of food products. The acquisition was in line with Company’s plan for accelerating its growth
in branded spices and masalas.

As per the SPA, it is intended that ECPL will merge into the Company through a merger process with due approval from the National Company Law
Tribunal, Bangalore (NCLT) as per Companies Act, 2013, As a part of merger, the Company will acquire/swap the remaining 32,18% stake of ECPL
from the promoters of ECPL (the Promoters) by issuing equity shares and redeemable optionally convertible preference shares (ROCPS). Accordingly,
post-merger, the Company will own 100% stake in ECPL and the Promoters will own 9.99% stake in the Company on a fully diluted basis.

In the event of non-completion of the above proposed merger by the merger deadline date i.e. December 31, 2022, or as mutually extended, the
Company will be required to acquire and the Promoters will be required to sell the above remaining stake as per the terms and conditions of the Sale
and Acquisition Agreement dated March 24, 2021 (Sale and Acquisition Agreement) between Orkla ASA, ultimate holding company of MTR and the
Promoters. To execute the above arrangement, effectively, MTR will acquire the 32.18% stake through a combination of fixed cash consideration of
Rs. 33,443 and issue of ROCPS for Rs. 27,000.

Accordingly, in accordance with Ind AS 32, as at March 31, 2022, the fair value of consideration payable in cash amounting to Rs. 31,746 (March 31,
2021: Rs. 29,619) (on an amortised basis) and Rs. 360 (March 31, 2021: Rs 360) is payable for the final adjustment to working capital is disclosed as
financial liability and the balance amount of Rs. 27,000 (March 31, 2022: Rs 27,000) has been disclosed in Standalone Statement of change in equity
as “Shares to be issued on account of investment in subsidiary”.

(a) Purchase consideration
As per the SPA and the Sale and Acquisition Agreement, the Company has present ownership of 100% stake in ECPL. Accordingly, based on the
anticipated acquisition of the remaining stake in ECPL, the total purchase consideration was recorded during the year ended March 31, 2021 as below:

Particulars Amount
Consideration discharged through bank 1,27,438
ROCPS to be issued on account of acquisition 27,000
Future acquisition liability 29,618
Liability on account of investment in subsidiary (towards the final working capital adjustment as per "SPA") 360
Total consideration 1.84.416
(b) Analysis of cash flows on acquisition

Consideration paid in cash (included in cash flows used in ir vk m‘g_,‘{r‘ﬁmgx\icx'l 1,27,438
Transaction cost of the acquisition (included in cash flowsAfsedin operitiniactivitics) 882
Total cash flow on acquisilion S \ \ 1,28,320
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(¢) As part of the SPAs, the Company has an obligation to pay the Promoters for certain contingencies pertaining to income tax and other indirect tax
matters of ECPL which are in dispute with the relevant authorities, subject to the same adjudicated in favour of ECPL within five years from the
closing date, i.e. March 31, 2021. The maximum amount payable under such consideration is Rs. 5,360

(d) On November 13, 2021, the Company and ECPL filed, with the NCLT, a Scheme of merger of ECPL with the Company with an appointed date of
April 01,2021, The Scheme is yet to be approved by the NCLT as of the date of approval of these financial statements.

(e) Acquisition related cost:
During the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company had incurred acquisition related cost on legal and other fees amounting to Rs. 882, which were
been disclosed under “Other expenses” in the standalone statement of profit and loss,

Other statutory information

(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder
(if) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,
(iii) The Company has not traded or invested in Cryptocurrency or Virtual Currency during the year ended March 31, 2022.
(iv) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(v) The Company has not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(vi) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961).
(vii) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.
(viii) The Company has not been declared as a Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or Government or any Government
authority.

<This space is intentionally left blank>
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53 The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received Presidential assent
in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been
notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will
record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

54 Standards issued but not yet effective

There are no new standards that are notified, but not yet effective, upto the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements.

55 Previous year figures
The comparitive figures have been regrouped/reclassified, where necessary, to confine to this year's classification.
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